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COMMUNICATIONS (FIJI) LIMITED 
NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Notice is hereby given that the 32nd Annual General Meeting of the members of Communications (Fiji) Limited will be held at 12pm 
on Wednesday, the 10th of May 2017, at 231 Waimanu Road, Suva to transact the following business: 

AGENDA

General Business

Minutes of the Previous Meetings held on 27th of May 2016:

To receive, consider and adopt the minutes of the previous Annual general Meeting held on 27th May 2016 as correct record of the 
meeting.

Ordinary business:

Item 1 Adoption of Financial Statements for the year ended 31st December 2016

To receive, consider and adopt the Audited financial position and Comprehensive Income Statement and the reports of the Directors 
and Auditors for the year ended 31st December 2016.

Item 2 Election of Directors 

(a) Mr Pramesh Sharma retires by rotation in accordance with Article 108 of the Articles of Association of the Company, and 
being eligible offers himself for re-appointment as a director of the company.

Item 3 Appointment of Directors
 
(b) To ratify appointment of Ms Thelma Savua on 22nd Feb 2017 as an Independent director under South Pacific Stock Exchanges 
(SPSE) listing rules section 6.35.

Item 4 Appointment of Auditors

To appoint auditors in accordance with section 422 of the Companies Act, 2015.The board proposes that M/s. Ernst & Young, Chartered 
Accountants, be re-appointed as auditors of the company for the year 2017 and that the board be authorized to fix their remuneration.

Item 5 Declaration of Dividends

The board recommends adopting the 1st dividend of $426,960 (12 cents per share) as final dividend for the year 2016.

Other Business;

Any other business brought up in conformity with the Articles of Association of the company. 

By order of the Board of Directors,

Jyoti Khatri
Company Secretary

Dated: 19th April 2017
Suva, Fiji Islands
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CHAIRMAN’S REPORT

The year ended December 31st, 2016, was a story of two very different markets. 

In Fiji we turned in a record performance, delivering a final profit of $1,714,468 (2015 $1,150,296).  This was the product of a buoyant 
business climate; the stations delivering for their audiences and the experience and talents of our head office workforce. 

We can state with justification that the attributes of our employees are second-to-none in the Fiji media market and in the Island 
region of the South Pacific.  Increasingly our focus is on ensuring these are deployed to bring maximum benefits to the group as a 
whole.

For PNG FM, our Papua New Guinea subsidiary, the outcome was very different.  You are aware that the PNG market and economy are 
experiencing a downturn and uncertainty. This has created difficult commercial conditions.  Our operations were also still adjusting to 
a restructure of the sales and administration team. The restructure should start to have a positive effect in 2017.

Against this backcloth PNG FM showed a substantial decline in operational profit to K223,127 (2015 K1,138,409).

We continued to face the challenge of our investment in Paradise Cinemas, entered into with Damodar Brothers (Films) Ltd and City 
Pharmacy Ltd. We have reported previously to shareholders of the substantial losses incurred by Paradise Cinemas. One of the reasons 
for its problems was an unsustainable level of bank debt. 

Our board has adopted a conservative approach to managing this situation.  In 2016 after lengthy deliberations and advice from external 
auditors, we decided to fully provision for our total investment of K7,295,000, out of which K4,295,000 was already provisioned as an 
impairment loss in 2015.

It was necessary to expend a further K3million to meet guarantee obligations to our bankers and thus reduce debt. The board of our 
subsidiary PNG FM decided it was prudent to provision for this amount as well.

This means our 43 per cent investment in Paradise Cinemas is being held at zero value and should have no further negative effects on 
our results. 

It was the impact of the Paradise write-downs that pushed the group into a loss of ($1,335,445) against a profit of  $1,455,513 in 2015.

However group operational profit, while affected by the Paradise developments, remained strong at $1,890,771 (2015 $2,123,952).

In deciding to maintain dividend distribution at 12 cents per share, your parent company board took into account the excellent Fiji 
operational performance, positive cash flows, cash at bank and a strong balance sheet.

As 2017 moves forward, we are registering good results in Fiji and aim to maintain profitability to at least the 2016 levels. We are 
continuing to invest in expansion of our transmission network and are developing our online capacity. There is growth in our CinemaAds 
business that has now diversified into video production. 

There should be some welcome news about our stake in iPac Communications Ltd (Unwired Fiji). This business was taken over by 
Digicel (Fiji) Ltd in 2011 with CFM retaining a 12 per cent shareholding. In line with a shareholders’ agreement Digicel had to buy us 
out after five years. Negotiations for this are in their final stages and we expect the outcome to have a positive effect on our bottom 
line and cash flow. 
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While the PNG market at this stage is still weak we believe the economy has reached the bottom of its downward cycle.  Prospects 
are looking much brighter. The national advertising spend will receive a considerable boost from the general elections scheduled for 
this year

Our position was strengthened through the findings of the 2016 Tebbutt Research media survey. These revealed that one of our 
stations, YUMI FM, is PNG’s most powerful broadcaster (radio and television) by a considerable margin. Be assured that this now forms 
an effective part of marketing and sales strategy.

Although Paradise continues to be confronted by significant challenges it is presently trading EBITDA positive. We are working with 
our partners to sell the business.

Shareholders will remember that I announced at last year’s annual meeting that I intended to step down towards the end of 2016 for 
reasons related to my personal plans. That decision is now delayed as a consequence of a transition process necessary to accompany 
new board and management arrangements. To help with this, I have agreed to remain as chair until the 2018 AGM.

The board recognizes that the logical successor as chair should be my fellow founder of CFM, William Parkinson, who is also the 
group’s largest shareholder.  It can truly be said that William is the “father” of CFM. The company was his idea and as managing 
director he has been the driving force in its growth and development.

To expedite the transition into his new role, William has been appointed executive director.  In the period leading up to the next AGM, 
he will be the prime facilitator of change in Fiji and PNG. Among other things, this involves decentralization and enhanced autonomy 
for our PNG board and management.

William has a wide-ranging brief to provide support and guidance throughout the group and remains a director of the parent company 
and the PNG subsidiary.

We are confident group employees will respond well to the new organization structure.  Apart from diverse skill sets they bring a mix 
of youth and maturity to what we do.  A number of senior staffers have climbed through the ranks during 20 to 30 years of service. 
More and more they are taking on responsibilities in PNG in addition to their duties in Fiji.

Last year we appointed Doris Southwick as group sales director. For more than two years Jyoti Khatri has occupied the position of 
group financial controller.

Sufi Dean joined the Fiji board in early 2016 and more recently Thelma Savua became a member.  Sufi, a founding member of the 
CFM team, has extensive broadcast and marketing experience. Thelma has held a number of senior management positions across the 
Pacific, including two years in PNG.

The board of PNG FM is strengthened with the appointment of Peter Aitsi as independent chairman.  Peter is a founding director of 
sales of the company and later became general manager. He remained a director after he stepped down from the GM’s position. Peter 
is well known and respected across PNG.

Adrian Au recently resigned as GM of PNG FM after 17 years with the company. He has agreed to perform the duties of company 
secretary.

Adrian and Peter will provide excellent support and local guidance to newly confirmed PNG general manager Charles Taylor, who was 
transferred to Port Moresby from CFM head office.

We have previously indicated that CFM is looking to eventually reduce its 100 per cent shareholding in PNG FM by offering shares to 
local investors. Over the next 12 months we will be actively considering this.

Change is a constant for successful businesses.  CFM, which has grown to be the South Pacific’s largest radio broadcaster, is now 
embarked on the most ambitious mission of change in its history. As always the ultimate goal is to further the interest of all our 
shareholders.

Matt Wilson
Chairman

v
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COMMUNICATIONS (FIJI) LIMITED 
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH GUIDELINE PROVIDED BY 
RESERVE BANK OF FIJI

Role of the Board 
The role of the Board is to ensure that Management is provided with general and strategic direction to enhance corporate profit and 
shareholder’s value. Decisions made by the Board should safeguard interests of the shareholders by overseeing Management and 
regularly assessing controls and accountability systems.

The Board
At the time of this report the Board comprised of six Directors including two independent Directors. All appointments and removal of 
directors are confirmed at the Annual General Meeting.

The Board has set up a sub-committee to review the remuneration package of key personnel. This committee is chaired by Mr Pramesh 
Sharma. Most of the decisions are made and dealt with collectively by the Board. Approval for urgent matters is sought via flying 
minutes.

Board Meetings
Board meeting discussions revolve around capital projects, financial performance and comparisons to budgets, editorial and operational 
matters, compliance with corporate governance requirements, management reports and the financial results of its subsidiaries and 
associates.

  Directors Number of Number of Apologies
                                                                                                                   meetings held                  meetings                                                                                   
                                                                                                                  during the year                 attended

  Mr Matthew Wilson (Chairman)                                                          7                               7 

  Mr William Parkinson (Managing Director)                                         7                               7 

  Mrs Shaenaz Voss (Resigned 11.04.16)/ Mr Vilash Chand
  (Alternate Director)                                                                           7                               2 

  Mr Pramesh Sharma                                                                           7                               7 

  Ms Sufi Dean (Appointed 21.03.16)                                                          7                               5                                 1

  Mr Vilash Chand (Appointed 4.05.16)                                         7                               4 

Responsibilities of the Board
Each year the Board goes through the process of assessing the company’s strategic plan, performance targets, business objectives and 
internal control policies. All matters relating to corporate governance are handled by the Board collectively. 
The Finance department is responsible for producing financial information, monitoring external audits, reviewing half year and annual 
financial statements and monitoring company’s compliance with stock exchange and other requirements by external bodies. The 
Board is informed on these matters regularly by management and approval is sought by way of flying minutes, depending on the 
urgency of the matter. 

Constituting an Effective Board
The CFM Board comprises of six directors out of which two are independent and two representing significant shareholders. All 
Directors are qualified individuals with wide experience in the media industry and the commercial sector. Appointments are based on 
qualification, skill, experience, knowledge and integrity of the individual. 

Appointment of a Chief Executive Officer (Managing Director)
Mr William Parkinson continued in his role as Managing Director. His role will change to Executive Director from 1st April 2017.  His 
appointment by the Board was based on his over 30 years experience in the media industry in the Pacific and in recognition of his 
performance in leading Communications Fiji Ltd since its inception in 1984. The remuneration package for the Managing Director was 
decided by the Board based on independent advice sought from Chartered Accounting firm PricewaterhouseCoopers.

Board and Company Secretary 
The Company Secretary, Jyoti Khatri is a Group Financial Controller and has substantial years of experience in management and 
accounting field. She is responsible for ensuring CFL and its subsidiary company PNGFM Ltd remains compliant to various regulatory 
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COMMUNICATIONS (FIJI) LIMITED 
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH GUIDELINE PROVIDED 
BY RESERVE BANK OF FIJI

requirements, meets statutory obligations, board policy and procedures. She maintains minutes of board meetings and is accountable 
to the Board on all governance issues.

Timely and balanced Disclosures
Board meetings are held on quarterly basis where company’s performance, strategies and operating results are discussed. On the 
basis of these discussions, major decisions are deliberated and approved by the Board. 

All the required material information is released periodically to the public through market announcements, as required under the 
rules of the South Pacific Stock Exchange. In between meetings, the Board is kept informed by the Managing Director on all the 
relevant matters transacting during the period.           

Promote ethical and responsible decision-making
The Board realizes that no organization can flourish if there is an absence of ethical and responsible decision making. Therefore, the 
Board has placed strong emphasis on encouraging management to engage in discussions and training that would foster improved 
ethical and responsible decision making.

Register of Interest
The interests of the directors if any are noted during Board meetings.

Respect the rights of shareholders
The shareholders of CFM are well informed through market announcements, media briefings and the Annual General Meeting. The 
Company also has an official website cfl.com.fj which is updated on a regular basis.

Accountability and Audit
Each subsidiary is separately audited annually by an external auditor and an Independent audit report is presented to the Board. 
This report also forms part of the Annual Report. External auditors are appointed every year by shareholders in the Annual General 
Meeting.

Though, the Company doesn’t have an internal audit team, special projects relating to Audit are performed by the Finance team and 
reports are presented to Management and the Board. 

Recognise and manage risk
The Company does not have a separate risk management committee. However, the Managing Director, Company Secretary and 
General Managers conduct continuous assessment on material business and operational risks and transmit it to the Board. They also 
ensure that proper controls and procedures are in place to administer these risks. 
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COMMUNICATIONS (FIJI) LIMITED and Subsidiary company
DIRECTORS’ REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

1

In accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors, the Directors herewith submit the Consolidated Statement of Financial 
Position of the company and the group as at 31 December 2016, the related Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income, 
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended on that date and 
report as follows:

Directors
Directors at the date of this report are:
Matthew Wilson
William Parkinson
Pramesh Sharma
Sufinaaz Dean (Appointed 21 March 2016)
Vilash Chand (Appointed 4 May 2016)
Thelma Savua (Appointed 22 February 2017)

Principal activity
The principal business activity of the company and the subsidiary company in the course of the year was the operation of commercial 
radio stations and there has been no significant change in this activity during the year. The associate companies provide wireless 
internet services, cinema entertainment and renting of a property respectively.

Results
The operating group loss for the year was $1,335,445 (2015: profit of $1,455,513) after providing $1,090,933 (2015: $645,996 tax 
benefit) for income tax expense. The operating profit for the holding company for the year was $1,657,766 (2015: $1,725,197) after 
providing $157,848 (2015: 128,428) for income tax expense.

Dividends
The dividends declared and/or paid during the year was $284,640 (2015: 426,960).

Reserves
The directors recommended that no transfer be made to reserves within the meaning of the Seventh Schedule of the Fiji Companies 
Act, 1983.

Bad and doubtful debts
Prior to the completion of the company’s and the group’s financial statements, the directors took reasonable steps to ascertain 
that action had been taken in relation to writing off bad debts and the provision for doubtful debts. In the opinion of the directors, 
adequate provision has been made for doubtful debts.

As at the date of this report, the directors are not aware of any circumstances which would render the amount written off for bad 
debts, or the provision for doubtful debts in the company and the group, inadequate to any substantial extent.

Non-current assets
Prior to the completion of the financial statements of the company and of the group, the directors took reasonable steps to ascertain 
whether any non-current assets were unlikely to be realized in the ordinary course of business as compared to their values as shown in 
the accounting records of the company and the group. Where necessary these assets have been written down or adequate provision 
has been made to bring the values of such assets to an amount that they might be expected to realize.

As at the date of this report, the directors are not aware of any circumstances which would render the values attributed to non-current 
assets in the company’s and the group’s financial statements misleading.

Unusual transactions
In the opinion of the directors, the results of the operations of the company and of the group during the financial year were not 
substantially affected by any item, transaction or event of a material and unusual nature likely, in the opinion of the directors, to affect 
substantially the results of the operations of the company and the group in the current financial year, other than those reflected in 
the financial statements.
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COMMUNICATIONS (FIJI) LIMITED and Subsidiary company
DIRECTORS’ REPORT continued
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

Significant events
TC Winston caused significant damage to the company’s transmitters when it hit Fiji in February 2016. The impact of the cyclone cost 
the company $232,551.

The company’s subsidiary, PNG FM Limited invested a further PGK 3 million in Paradise Cinemas Limited to enable the entity to settle 
its bank loan and release PNG FM Limited from its liability as guarantor of the loan.

Events subsequent to balance date
Subsequent to year end, the Directors declared a final dividend of 12 cents per share for the year ended 31 December 2016.

No other matters or circumstances have arisen since the end of the financial year which significantly affected or may significantly affect 
the operations of the company and the group, the results of those operations, or the state of affairs of the company and the group as 
reported in these financial statements.

Other circumstances
As at the date of this report :

(i)   no charge on the assets of the company and the group has been given since the end of the financial year to secure the liabilities         
of any other person;

  
(ii)  no contingent liabilities have arisen since the end of the financial year for which the company and the group could become liable; and

(iii) no contingent liabilities or other liabilities of the company and the group have become or are likely to become enforceable within the          
period of twelve months after the end of the financial year which, in the opinion of the directors, will or may substantially affect the 
ability of the company and the group to meet its obligations as and when they fall due.

As at the date of this report, the directors are not aware of any circumstances that have arisen, not otherwise dealt with in this report or the
company’s and its group’s financial statements, which would make adherence to the existing method of valuation of assets or liabilities of the
company and its subsidiary misleading or inappropriate.

Directors’ benefits
Since the end of the previous financial year, no director has received or become entitled to receive a benefit (other than those included in the
aggregate amount of emoluments received or due and receivable by directors shown in the financial statements or received as the fixed 
salary of a full-time employee of the company or of a related corporation) by reason of a contract made by the company or by a related 
corporation with the director or with a firm of which he is a member, or with a company in which he has a substantial financial interest.

Directors’ interests
Particulars of directors’ interests in the ordinary shares of the company during the year are as follows:

                                                                                            Direct interest                                                             Indirect interest
Sufinaaz Dean                                                                          2,000                                                                                 Nil
William Parkinson                                                                      Nil                                                                             1,881,341

Signed on behalf of the Board of Directors in accordance with a resolution of the directors.

Dated this 8th day of March 2017.

Director:                                                                                                          Director: 

COMMUNICATIONS (FIJI) LIMITED and Subsidiary company
DIRECTORS' REPORT continued
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

Events subsequent to balance date

Subsequent to year end, the Directors declared a final dividend of 12 cents per share for the year ended 31 December 2016.

Other circumstances

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Directors' benefits

Directors' interests

Sufinaaz Dean
William Parkinson

Dated this 8th day of March 2017.

Director: ……………………………………….. Director: ………………………………………

Since the end of the previous financial year, no director has received or become entitled to receive a benefit (other than those included in the
aggregate amount of emoluments received or due and receivable by directors shown in the financial statements or received as the fixed salary of
a full-time employee of the company or of a related corporation) by reason of a contract made by the company or by a related corporation with
the director or with a firm of which he is a member, or with a company in which he has a substantial financial interest.

As at the date of this report, the directors are not aware of any circumstances that have arisen, not otherwise dealt with in this report or the
company's and its group's financial statements, which would make adherence to the existing method of valuation of assets or liabilities of the
company and its subsidiary misleading or inappropriate.
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Particulars of directors' interests in the ordinary shares of the company during the year are as follows:
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1,881,341Nil

Signed on behalf of the Board of Directors in accordance with a resolution of the directors.

As at the date of this report :

No other matters or circumstances have arisen since the end of the financial year which significantly affected or may significantly affect the
operations of the company and the group, the results of those operations, or the state of affairs of the company and the group as reported in
these financial statements.

no contingent liabilities or other liabilities of the company and the group have become or are likely to become enforceable within the period
of twelve months after the end of the financial year which, in the opinion of the directors, will or may substantially affect the ability of the
company and the group to meet its obligations as and when they fall due.

no charge on the assets of the company and the group has been given since the end of the financial year to secure the liabilities of any other
person;

no contingent liabilities have arisen since the end of the financial year for which the company and the group could become liable; and

Significant events

TC Winston caused significant damage to the company's transmitters when it hit Fiji in February 2016. The impact of the cyclone cost the
company $232,551.

The company's subsidiary, PNG FM Limited invested a further PGK 3 million in Paradise Cinemas Limited to enable the entity to settle its bank
loan and release PNG FM Limited from its liability as guarantor of the loan.
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COMMUNICATIONS (FIJI) LIMITED and Subsidiary company
DIRECTORS' REPORT continued
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016
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operations of the company and the group, the results of those operations, or the state of affairs of the company and the group as reported in
these financial statements.

no contingent liabilities or other liabilities of the company and the group have become or are likely to become enforceable within the period
of twelve months after the end of the financial year which, in the opinion of the directors, will or may substantially affect the ability of the
company and the group to meet its obligations as and when they fall due.

no charge on the assets of the company and the group has been given since the end of the financial year to secure the liabilities of any other
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no contingent liabilities have arisen since the end of the financial year for which the company and the group could become liable; and
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TC Winston caused significant damage to the company's transmitters when it hit Fiji in February 2016. The impact of the cyclone cost the
company $232,551.

The company's subsidiary, PNG FM Limited invested a further PGK 3 million in Paradise Cinemas Limited to enable the entity to settle its bank
loan and release PNG FM Limited from its liability as guarantor of the loan.
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COMMUNICATIONS (FIJI) LIMITED and Subsidiary company
STATEMENT BY DIRECTORS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

In accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors, we state that in our opinion:

(i)   the accompanying Statement of Comprehensive Income of the company and group is drawn up so as to give a true and fair view 
of the results of the company and the group for the year ended 31 December 2016;

(ii)  the accompanying Statement of Changes in Equity of the company and the group is drawn up so as to give a true and fair view of 
the changes in equity of the company and the group for the year ended 31 December 2016;

(iii) the accompanying Statement of Financial Position of the company and the group is drawn up so as to give a true and fair view of 
the state of affairs of the company and the group as at 31 December 2016;

(iv) the accompanying Statement of Cash Flows of the company and the group is drawn up so as to give a true and fair view of the 
statement of cash flows of the company and the group for the year ended 31 December 2016;

(v)  at the date of this statement there are reasonable grounds to believe the company and the group will be able to pay its debts as 
and when they fall due; and

(vi) all related party transactions have been adequately recorded in the books of the company and group.

Signed on behalf of the Board of Directors in accordance with a resolution of the directors.

Dated this 8th day of March 2017.

Director:                                                                                                          Director: 

COMMUNICATIONS (FIJI) LIMITED and Subsidiary company
DIRECTORS' REPORT continued
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

Events subsequent to balance date

Subsequent to year end, the Directors declared a final dividend of 12 cents per share for the year ended 31 December 2016.
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(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Directors' benefits
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Sufinaaz Dean
William Parkinson

Dated this 8th day of March 2017.

Director: ……………………………………….. Director: ………………………………………

Since the end of the previous financial year, no director has received or become entitled to receive a benefit (other than those included in the
aggregate amount of emoluments received or due and receivable by directors shown in the financial statements or received as the fixed salary of
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the director or with a firm of which he is a member, or with a company in which he has a substantial financial interest.

As at the date of this report, the directors are not aware of any circumstances that have arisen, not otherwise dealt with in this report or the
company's and its group's financial statements, which would make adherence to the existing method of valuation of assets or liabilities of the
company and its subsidiary misleading or inappropriate.
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operations of the company and the group, the results of those operations, or the state of affairs of the company and the group as reported in
these financial statements.

no contingent liabilities or other liabilities of the company and the group have become or are likely to become enforceable within the period
of twelve months after the end of the financial year which, in the opinion of the directors, will or may substantially affect the ability of the
company and the group to meet its obligations as and when they fall due.

no charge on the assets of the company and the group has been given since the end of the financial year to secure the liabilities of any other
person;

no contingent liabilities have arisen since the end of the financial year for which the company and the group could become liable; and

Significant events

TC Winston caused significant damage to the company's transmitters when it hit Fiji in February 2016. The impact of the cyclone cost the
company $232,551.

The company's subsidiary, PNG FM Limited invested a further PGK 3 million in Paradise Cinemas Limited to enable the entity to settle its bank
loan and release PNG FM Limited from its liability as guarantor of the loan.
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COMMUNICATIONS (FIJI) LIMITED and Subsidiary company
DIRECTORS' REPORT continued
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

Events subsequent to balance date

Subsequent to year end, the Directors declared a final dividend of 12 cents per share for the year ended 31 December 2016.

Other circumstances

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Directors' benefits

Directors' interests

Sufinaaz Dean
William Parkinson

Dated this 8th day of March 2017.

Director: ……………………………………….. Director: ………………………………………

Since the end of the previous financial year, no director has received or become entitled to receive a benefit (other than those included in the
aggregate amount of emoluments received or due and receivable by directors shown in the financial statements or received as the fixed salary of
a full-time employee of the company or of a related corporation) by reason of a contract made by the company or by a related corporation with
the director or with a firm of which he is a member, or with a company in which he has a substantial financial interest.

As at the date of this report, the directors are not aware of any circumstances that have arisen, not otherwise dealt with in this report or the
company's and its group's financial statements, which would make adherence to the existing method of valuation of assets or liabilities of the
company and its subsidiary misleading or inappropriate.

2,000 Nil
Indirect interest

Particulars of directors' interests in the ordinary shares of the company during the year are as follows:

Direct interest

1,881,341Nil

Signed on behalf of the Board of Directors in accordance with a resolution of the directors.

As at the date of this report :

No other matters or circumstances have arisen since the end of the financial year which significantly affected or may significantly affect the
operations of the company and the group, the results of those operations, or the state of affairs of the company and the group as reported in
these financial statements.

no contingent liabilities or other liabilities of the company and the group have become or are likely to become enforceable within the period
of twelve months after the end of the financial year which, in the opinion of the directors, will or may substantially affect the ability of the
company and the group to meet its obligations as and when they fall due.

no charge on the assets of the company and the group has been given since the end of the financial year to secure the liabilities of any other
person;

no contingent liabilities have arisen since the end of the financial year for which the company and the group could become liable; and

Significant events

TC Winston caused significant damage to the company's transmitters when it hit Fiji in February 2016. The impact of the cyclone cost the
company $232,551.

The company's subsidiary, PNG FM Limited invested a further PGK 3 million in Paradise Cinemas Limited to enable the entity to settle its bank
loan and release PNG FM Limited from its liability as guarantor of the loan.
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INDEPENDENT AUDIT REPORT

To the Shareholders of Communications (Fiji) Limited

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial report of Communications (Fiji) Limited (“the Company”) and its subsidiary (“the Group”), which
comprises the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2016, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the financial report, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information and the Directors’ Declaration.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial report of the Group give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2016, and of its consolidated financial performance, changes in equity and its consolidated cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (“ISAs”).  Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Report section of our report.  We
are independent of the Group in accordance with the International Ethics Standards board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (IESBA Code), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA
Code.  We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Other Matters

Other than the provision of assurance services in our capacity as auditor, we have no relationship with, or interest in the
Company. Partners and employees of our firm deal with the Company on normal terms within the ordinary course of trading
activities of the business of the Company.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the financial
report for the current period.  These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial report as a whole, and
in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For the matter below, our description
of how our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Report section of
our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures designed to
respond to our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements. The results of our audit procedures,
including the procedures performed to address the matter below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying
financial report.

Key audit matters How our audit addressed the matter

Impairment of goodwill and investments in associate and
joint ventures:

Given the significant write downs by the subsidiary (PNG
FM Limited) on its investment in the Paradise Cinemas
joint venture, there is a risk that there could be a
material impairment to goodwill.

As disclosed in Note 2.4(c) to the financial report, the
Directors’  assessment  of  impairment  for  goodwill  and
other assets within the relevant cash generating unit
(“CGU”) involves critical accounting estimates and
assumptions, specifically concerning assumptions about
the future, including future cash flows. Further
disclosure around the Group’s goodwill impairment
assessment is included in Note 15.

We evaluated the impairment calculations including assessing
the recoverable amount of the CGU. We evaluated the cash flow
projections   approved by the Board as used in the impairment
model. We assessed the key assumptions including the discount
rate, terminal growth rate and forecast growth assumptions.

We performed sensitivity analysis around the key drivers of the
cash flow projections. Having determined the change in
assumptions (individually and collectively) that would be
required for the CGU to be impaired, we considered the
likelihood of such a movement in those key assumptions arising.
We also evaluated the adequacy of the disclosure included in
Note 15.

INDEPENDENT AUDIT REPORT

To the Shareholders of Communications (Fiji) Limited

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion
We have audited the financial report of Communications (Fiji) Limited (“the Company”) and its subsidiary (“the Group”), which 
comprises the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2016, the consolidated statement of comprehensive 
income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes 
to the financial report, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information and the Directors’ 
Declaration.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial report of the Group give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the 
Group as at 31 December 2016, and of its consolidated financial performance, changes in equity and its consolidated cash flows for 
the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”).

Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (“ISAs”). Our responsibilities under those standards 
are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Report section of our report. We are independent 
of the Group in accordance with the International Ethics Standards board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants 
(IESBA Code), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit 
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Other Matters
Other than the provision of assurance services in our capacity as auditor, we have no relationship with, or interest in the Company. 
Partners and employees of our firm deal with the Company on normal terms within the ordinary course of trading activities of the 
business of the Company.

Key Audit Matters
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the financial report 
for the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial report as a whole, and in forming our 
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For the matter below, our description of how our audit 
addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Report section of our 
report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond to 
our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements. The results of our audit procedures, including the 
procedures performed to address the matter below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying financial report.

Impairment of goodwill and investments in associate and
joint ventures:

Given the significant write downs by the subsidiary (PNG 
FM Limited) on its investment in the Paradise Cinemas 
joint venture, there is a risk that there could be a material 
impairment to goodwill.

As disclosed in Note 2.4(c) to the financial report, the 
Directors’ assessment of impairment for goodwill and 
other assets within the relevant cash generating unit 
(“CGU”) involves critical accounting estimates and 
assumptions, specifically concerning assumptions about 
the future, including future cash flows. Further disclosure 
around the Group’s goodwill impairment assessment is 
included in Note 15.

Key audit matters                                                                                     How our audit addressed the matter

We evaluated the impairment calculations including assessing 
the recoverable amount of the CGU. We evaluated the cash flow
projections approved by the Board as used in the impairment 
model. We assessed the key assumptions including the discount
rate, terminal growth rate and forecast growth assumptions.

We performed sensitivity analysis around the key drivers of 
the cash flow projections. Having determined the change 
in assumptions (individually and collectively) that would 
be required for the CGU to be impaired, we considered the 
likelihood of such a movement in those key assumptions arising. 
We also evaluated the adequacy of the disclosure included in 
Note 15.
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Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report

The management and directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information in the 
Group’s annual report for the year ended 31 December 2016, but does not include the financial report and the auditor’s report 
thereon.

Our opinion on the financial report does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion 
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial report, our responsibility is to read the other information identified above and, in doing 
so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial report or our knowledge obtained during 
the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based upon the work performed, we conclude that there is a material 
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard. 

Responsibilities of the management and Directors for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The management and directors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial report in accordance with 
IFRS and for such internal control as management and the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial 
report that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial report, the management and directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a 
going concern, disclosing, as applicable matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless 
management and the directors either intend to liquidate the Group to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The management and Directors are responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial report as a whole are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of 
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when 
it exists. Misstatement can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could 
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial report.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout
the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and 
perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting 
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal 
control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in 
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related 
disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management and directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on 
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant 
doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are 
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures 
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our 
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether 
the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
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INDEPENDENT AUDIT REPORT

To the Shareholders of Communications (Fiji) Limited

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial report of Communications (Fiji) Limited (“the Company”) and its subsidiary (“the Group”), which
comprises the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2016, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the financial report, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information and the Directors’ Declaration.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial report of the Group give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2016, and of its consolidated financial performance, changes in equity and its consolidated cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (“ISAs”).  Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Report section of our report.  We
are independent of the Group in accordance with the International Ethics Standards board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (IESBA Code), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA
Code.  We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Other Matters

Other than the provision of assurance services in our capacity as auditor, we have no relationship with, or interest in the
Company. Partners and employees of our firm deal with the Company on normal terms within the ordinary course of trading
activities of the business of the Company.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the financial
report for the current period.  These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial report as a whole, and
in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For the matter below, our description
of how our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Report section of
our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures designed to
respond to our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements. The results of our audit procedures,
including the procedures performed to address the matter below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying
financial report.

Key audit matters How our audit addressed the matter

Impairment of goodwill and investments in associate and
joint ventures:

Given the significant write downs by the subsidiary (PNG
FM Limited) on its investment in the Paradise Cinemas
joint venture, there is a risk that there could be a
material impairment to goodwill.

As disclosed in Note 2.4(c) to the financial report, the
Directors’  assessment  of  impairment  for  goodwill  and
other assets within the relevant cash generating unit
(“CGU”) involves critical accounting estimates and
assumptions, specifically concerning assumptions about
the future, including future cash flows. Further
disclosure around the Group’s goodwill impairment
assessment is included in Note 15.

We evaluated the impairment calculations including assessing
the recoverable amount of the CGU. We evaluated the cash flow
projections   approved by the Board as used in the impairment
model. We assessed the key assumptions including the discount
rate, terminal growth rate and forecast growth assumptions.

We performed sensitivity analysis around the key drivers of the
cash flow projections. Having determined the change in
assumptions (individually and collectively) that would be
required for the CGU to be impaired, we considered the
likelihood of such a movement in those key assumptions arising.
We also evaluated the adequacy of the disclosure included in
Note 15.

5



COMMUNICATIONS FIJI LIMTED ANNUAL REPORT 2016

6

A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited 7

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the financial report. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance
of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with management and the Directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We are also required to provide management and  the Directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably
be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with management and the directors, we determine those matters that were of most significance
in the audit of the financial statements of the current year and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters
in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

In accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 1983, in our opinion:

a) Proper books of account have been kept by the company and the group, so far as it appears from our examination of
those books; and

b) the accompanying financial statements:

i) are in agreement with the books of account; and

ii) to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, give the information required by the
Companies Act, 1983 in the manner so required.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Sikeli Tuinamuana.

Suva, Fiji Ernst & Young
8 March 2017 Chartered Accountants
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INDEPENDENT AUDIT REPORT

To the Shareholders of Communications (Fiji) Limited

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial report of Communications (Fiji) Limited (“the Company”) and its subsidiary (“the Group”), which
comprises the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2016, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the financial report, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information and the Directors’ Declaration.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial report of the Group give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2016, and of its consolidated financial performance, changes in equity and its consolidated cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (“ISAs”).  Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Report section of our report.  We
are independent of the Group in accordance with the International Ethics Standards board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (IESBA Code), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA
Code.  We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Other Matters

Other than the provision of assurance services in our capacity as auditor, we have no relationship with, or interest in the
Company. Partners and employees of our firm deal with the Company on normal terms within the ordinary course of trading
activities of the business of the Company.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the financial
report for the current period.  These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial report as a whole, and
in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For the matter below, our description
of how our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Report section of
our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures designed to
respond to our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements. The results of our audit procedures,
including the procedures performed to address the matter below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying
financial report.

Key audit matters How our audit addressed the matter

Impairment of goodwill and investments in associate and
joint ventures:

Given the significant write downs by the subsidiary (PNG
FM Limited) on its investment in the Paradise Cinemas
joint venture, there is a risk that there could be a
material impairment to goodwill.

As disclosed in Note 2.4(c) to the financial report, the
Directors’  assessment  of  impairment  for  goodwill  and
other assets within the relevant cash generating unit
(“CGU”) involves critical accounting estimates and
assumptions, specifically concerning assumptions about
the future, including future cash flows. Further
disclosure around the Group’s goodwill impairment
assessment is included in Note 15.

We evaluated the impairment calculations including assessing
the recoverable amount of the CGU. We evaluated the cash flow
projections   approved by the Board as used in the impairment
model. We assessed the key assumptions including the discount
rate, terminal growth rate and forecast growth assumptions.

We performed sensitivity analysis around the key drivers of the
cash flow projections. Having determined the change in
assumptions (individually and collectively) that would be
required for the CGU to be impaired, we considered the
likelihood of such a movement in those key assumptions arising.
We also evaluated the adequacy of the disclosure included in
Note 15.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities within the 
Group to express an opinion on the financial report. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the 
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with management and the Directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and 
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We are also required to provide management and the Directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical 
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be 
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with management and the directors, we determine those matters that were of most significance in 
the audit of the financial statements of the current year and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our 
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we 
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably 
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

In accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 1983, in our opinion:

a)    Proper books of account have been kept by the company and the group, so far as it appears from our examination of those 
books; and

b)    the accompanying financial statements:

i)      are in agreement with the books of account; and

ii)   to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, give the information required by the 
Companies Act, 1983 in the manner so required.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Sikeli Tuinamuana.

Suva, Fiji                                                          
8 March 2017   
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Chartered Accountants
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COMMUNICATIONS (FIJI) LIMITED and Subsidiary company
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016
COMMUNICATIONS (FIJI) LIMITED and Subsidiary company
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

Notes
2016 2015 2016 2015

$ $ $ $

Radio income 4.1 11,281,534 12,227,176 5,521,551 4,871,660
Other revenue 4.2 1,226,324 1,368,377 1,429,902 1,307,030
Salaries and employee benefits 4.3 (3,351,727) (3,512,472) (2,246,690) (2,137,446)
Depreciation and amortization 4.4 (1,063,236) (1,069,044) (591,726) (552,308)
Other expenses 4.5 (6,202,124) (6,890,085) (2,398,569) (2,338,640)

Profit from operations 1,890,771 2,123,952 1,714,468 1,150,296

Finance costs 4.6 (95,727) (81,420) (39,530) (65,636)
4.7 (511,996) (85,300) 140,676 768,965

Impairment loss on joint venture 13 (1,527,560) (1,147,715) - -

Profit/(loss) before income tax (244,512) 809,517 1,815,614 1,853,625

Income tax benefit/(expense) 5 (1,090,933) 645,996 (157,848) (128,428)

Net profit/(loss) for the year (1,335,445) 1,455,513 1,657,766 1,725,197

Other comprehensive income

Other comprehensive income to be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods:

21 (217,827) (280,032) - -

Other comprehensive income for the year (217,827) (280,032) - -

Total comprehensive income for the year (1,553,272) 1,175,481 1,657,766 1,725,197

Earnings per share (cents) 6 (37.53) 40.91

The accompanying notes form an integral part of this Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Share of (loss)/profit of associate or joint venture

Group Holding Company

Exchange differences on translation of foreign
operation

8

Other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income for the year

Holding CompanyGroup
2016 20162015 2015

$ $ $ $

Notes
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COMMUNICATIONS (FIJI) LIMITED and Subsidiary company
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AT 31 DECEMBER 2016
COMMUNICATIONS (FIJI) LIMITED and Subsidiary company
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AT 31 DECEMBER 2016

Notes
2016 2015 2016 2015

Current assets $ $ $ $
Cash and cash equivalents 9(a) 1,405,902 432,845 366,623 236,363
Trade receivables 8 2,076,779 2,453,793 2,073,320 1,513,750
Inventories 10 - 4,734 - 4,734
Prepayments and other assets 11 364,785 356,633 131,090 107,984
Income tax receivable 294,139 54,219 23,634 54,219

4,141,605 3,302,224 2,594,667 1,917,050

Non-current assets
Investment in subsidiary 12 - - 1,725,117 1,725,117
Investment in associates and joint ventures 13 2,036,629 1,970,953 2,036,629 1,970,953
Financial assets 14 591,884 591,884 591,884 591,884
Intangible assets 15 1,469,767 1,560,799 292,760 374,250
Property, plant and equipment 16 5,957,360 6,101,226 3,367,413 3,052,781
Deferred tax assets 5(b) 73,856 1,022,826 - -

10,129,496 11,247,688 8,013,803 7,714,985

Total assets 14,271,101 14,549,912 10,608,470 9,632,035

Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 17 1,183,840 1,147,845 451,702 425,363
Employee benefit liabilities 18 156,183 134,555 109,343 90,022
Interest-bearing borrowings 19 973,215 484,274 473,263 476,330
Income tax payable - 61,393 - -

2,313,238 1,828,067 1,034,308 991,715

Non-current liabilities
Interest-bearing borrowings 19 1,683,550 588,968 182,421 588,968
Employee benefit liabilities 18 113,964 101,879 - -
Deferred tax liability 5(b) 134,605 167,342 134,605 167,342

1,932,119 858,189 317,026 756,310

Total liabilities 4,245,357 2,686,256 1,351,334 1,748,025

Net assets 10,025,744 11,863,656 9,257,136 7,884,010

Shareholders' equity
Share capital 20 3,558,000 3,558,000 3,558,000 3,558,000
Reserves 21 (244,174) (26,347) 61,500 61,500
Retained earnings 6,711,918 8,332,003 5,637,636 4,264,510

Total equity 10,025,744 11,863,656 9,257,136 7,884,010

The accompanying notes form an integral part of this Consolidated Statement of Financial Position.

Signed for and on behalf of the Board and in accordance with a resolution of the Directors.

Director: …………………………… Director: ………………………………

Holding CompanyGroup

9

Notes

COMMUNICATIONS (FIJI) LIMITED and Subsidiary company
DIRECTORS' REPORT continued
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

Events subsequent to balance date

Subsequent to year end, the Directors declared a final dividend of 12 cents per share for the year ended 31 December 2016.

Other circumstances

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Directors' benefits

Directors' interests

Sufinaaz Dean
William Parkinson

Dated this 8th day of March 2017.

Director: ……………………………………….. Director: ………………………………………

Since the end of the previous financial year, no director has received or become entitled to receive a benefit (other than those included in the
aggregate amount of emoluments received or due and receivable by directors shown in the financial statements or received as the fixed salary of
a full-time employee of the company or of a related corporation) by reason of a contract made by the company or by a related corporation with
the director or with a firm of which he is a member, or with a company in which he has a substantial financial interest.

As at the date of this report, the directors are not aware of any circumstances that have arisen, not otherwise dealt with in this report or the
company's and its group's financial statements, which would make adherence to the existing method of valuation of assets or liabilities of the
company and its subsidiary misleading or inappropriate.

2,000 Nil
Indirect interest

Particulars of directors' interests in the ordinary shares of the company during the year are as follows:

Direct interest

1,881,341Nil

Signed on behalf of the Board of Directors in accordance with a resolution of the directors.

As at the date of this report :

No other matters or circumstances have arisen since the end of the financial year which significantly affected or may significantly affect the
operations of the company and the group, the results of those operations, or the state of affairs of the company and the group as reported in
these financial statements.

no contingent liabilities or other liabilities of the company and the group have become or are likely to become enforceable within the period
of twelve months after the end of the financial year which, in the opinion of the directors, will or may substantially affect the ability of the
company and the group to meet its obligations as and when they fall due.

no charge on the assets of the company and the group has been given since the end of the financial year to secure the liabilities of any other
person;

no contingent liabilities have arisen since the end of the financial year for which the company and the group could become liable; and

Significant events

TC Winston caused significant damage to the company's transmitters when it hit Fiji in February 2016. The impact of the cyclone cost the
company $232,551.

The company's subsidiary, PNG FM Limited invested a further PGK 3 million in Paradise Cinemas Limited to enable the entity to settle its bank
loan and release PNG FM Limited from its liability as guarantor of the loan.
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COMMUNICATIONS (FIJI) LIMITED and Subsidiary company
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016
COMMUNICATIONS (FIJI) LIMITED and Subsidiary company
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

Note
2016 2015 2016 2015

$ $ $ $
Operating activities

Receipts from customers 12,534,273 13,367,753 6,429,777 6,153,426
Payments to suppliers and employees (9,281,459) (10,428,478) (4,617,971) (4,444,675)
Interest and bank charges paid (95,727) (81,420) (39,530) (65,636)
Income tax paid (494,238) (38,092) (160,000) (100,000)

2,662,849 2,819,763 1,612,276 1,543,115

Investing activities

Proceeds from sale of plant and equipment 103,830 1,739 44,073 1,739
Acquisition of plant, equipment and intangibles (1,147,236) (750,111) (906,835) (489,267)
Investment in joint venture (2,055,076) (1,069,736) - -
Dividends received 75,000 250,000 75,000 250,000

(3,023,482) (1,568,108) (787,762) (237,528)

Financing activities

Dividends paid to equity holders of the parent (284,640) (426,960) (284,640) (426,960)
Proceeds from loan 2,055,076 - - -
Repayment of secured loan principal (440,145) (555,699) (386,150) (407,612)
Repayment of lease principal (23,464) (45,536) (23,464) (45,535)

Net cash flows provided by/(used) in Financing Activities 1,306,827 (1,028,195) (694,254) (880,107)

Net increase in cash held 946,194 223,460 130,260 425,480

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of year 432,845 190,018 236,363 (189,117)

Effects of exchange rate changes on opening cash balances 26,863 19,367 - -

9(a) 1,405,902 432,845 366,623 236,363

The accompanying notes form an integral part of this Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows.

Net cash flows used in Investing Activities

Net cash provided by Operating Activities

Holding Company

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of year

Group
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Operating activities

Net cash provided by Operating Activities

Investing activities

Financing activities

Net cash flows used in Investing Activities

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of year

Holding CompanyGroup
2016 20162015 2015

$ $ $ $

Notes

Net cash flows provided by/(used) in Financing Activities
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COMMUNICATIONS (FIJI) LIMITED and Subsidiary company
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016
COMMUNICATIONS (FIJI) LIMITED and Subsidiary company
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

Notes
2016 2015 2016 2015

$ $ $ $
Retained earnings

Balance at the beginning of the year 8,332,003 7,303,450 4,264,510 2,966,273
Operating (loss)/profit after tax (1,335,445) 1,455,513 1,657,766 1,725,197
Dividends paid/proposed 7 (284,640) (426,960) (284,640) (426,960)
Balance at the end of the year 6,711,918 8,332,003 5,637,636 4,264,510

Reserves

Foreign currency translation reserve

Balance at the beginning of the year (87,847) 192,185 - -
(217,827) (280,032) - -

Balance at the end of the year 21 (305,674) (87,847) - -

Share premium reserve

Balance at the beginning of the year 61,500 61,500 61,500 61,500
- - - -

Balance at the end of the year 21 61,500 61,500 61,500 61,500

Share capital

Balance at the beginning of the year 3,558,000 3,558,000 3,558,000 3,558,000
Movement during the year - - - -
Balance at the end of the year 20 3,558,000 3,558,000 3,558,000 3,558,000

Total equity 10,025,744 11,863,656 9,257,136 7,884,010

The accompanying notes form an integral part of this Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity.

Group

Movement arising on translation of the financial
statements of foreign subsidiary

Holding Company

Movement during the year

11

Retained earnings

Reserves

Share capital

Total equity 7,884,01010,025,744 11,863,656 9,257,136

Holding CompanyGroup
2016 20162015 2015

$ $ $ $

Notes
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COMMUNICATIONS (FIJI) LIMITED and Subsidiary company
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016
COMMUNICATIONS (FIJI) LIMITED and Subsidiary company
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

1. Corporate information

2.1 Basis of preparation

Statement of compliance

Basis of consolidation

- power over the investee (i.e. existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee);
- exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee; and
- the ability to use its power over the investee to affect its returns.

- the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the investee;
- rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and
- the group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

- derecognizes the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary;
- derecognizes the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity;
- recognizes the fair value of the consideration received;
- recognizes the fair value of any investment retained;
- recognizes any surplus or deficit in profit or loss; and
-

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the group and its subsidiary as at 31 December 2016. Control is
achieved when the group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect
those returns through its power over the investee. Specifically, the group controls an investee if and only if the group has:

The consolidated financial statements of Communications (Fiji) Limited and its subsidiary company ("the Group") for the year ended 31
December 2016 were authorized for issue with a resolution of the directors on 22 February 2017. Communications (Fiji) Limited is a limited
liability company incorporated and domiciled in Fiji whose shares are publicly traded on the South Pacific Stock Exchange.

A change in ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction. If the group loses control
over a subsidiary, it:

reclassifies the parent's share of components previously recognized in other comprehensive income to profit or loss or retained
earnings, as appropriate, as would be required if the group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

On consolidation, the subsidiary company PNG FM's assets and liabilities has been translated at the rate of exchange ruling at balance date.
Revenue and expense accounts have been translated using the average of the exchange rates ruling at the end of each month during the
current financial year. The rate used to translate the assets and liabilities of PNG FM was 1.4598:1 (2015: 1.3508:1) while the average rate
used to translate revenue and expense accounts was 1.376:1 (2015:1.2115:1).

All intra-group balances, income and expenses and unrealized gains and losses resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated in full.

When the group has less than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the group considers all relevant facts and
circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an investee, including:

The consolidated financial statements of the group have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRS) as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB).

The group re-assesses whether it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the three
elements of control. Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the group obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the group
loses control of the subsidiary. Assets, liabilities, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are included in
the Statement of Comprehensive Income from the date the group gains control until the date the group ceases to control the subsidiary.

The consolidated financial statements provide comparative information in respect of the previous period.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis. The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Fiji dollars and all values are rounded to the nearest dollar except when otherwise indicated.

The financial statements of the subsidiary is prepared for the same reporting period as the parent company, using consistent accounting
policies.
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COMMUNICATIONS (FIJI) LIMITED and Subsidiary company
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016
COMMUNICATIONS (FIJI) LIMITED and Subsidiary company
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

2.2 Significant accounting judgments, estimates and assumptions

Estimates and assumptions

Impairment of non-financial assets

Taxes

2.3 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

i) New and amended standards and interpretations

IFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts

Amendments to IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements: Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests

The preparation of the company and the group's financial statements requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures and the disclosure of
contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the
carrying amount of the assets or liabilities affected in future periods.

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a significant risk
of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below. The
group based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the consolidated financial statements were prepared. Existing
circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising beyond
the control of the group. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which
the losses can be utilized. Deferred tax assets are also recognised for all temporary differences that are expected to reverse and reduce
taxable profit in the future. Significant management judgment is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be
recognized, based upon the likely timing, the probability that temporary differences will reverse and level of future taxable profits together
with future tax planning strategies.

IFRS 14 is an optional standard that allows an entity, whose activities are subject to rate-regulation, to continue applying most of its existing
accounting policies for regulatory deferral account balances upon its first-time adoption of IFRS. Since the Group is an existing IFRS preparer
and is not involved in any rate-regulated activities, this standard did not apply during the year.

The amendments to IFRS 11 require that a joint operator accounting for the acquisition of an interest in a joint operation, in which the
activity of the joint operation constitutes a business, must apply the relevant IFRS 3 Business Combinations principles for business
combination accounting. The amendments also clarify that a previously held interest in a joint operation is not remeasured on the acquisition
of an additional interest in the same joint operation if joint control is retained. In addition, a scope exclusion has been added to IFRS 11 to
specify that the amendments do not apply when the parties sharing joint control, including the reporting entity, are under common control of
the same ultimate controlling party.

Uncertainties exist with respect to the interpretation of complex tax regulations, changes in tax laws, and the amount and timing of future
taxable income. The group establishes provisions, based on reasonable estimates, for possible consequences of audits by the tax authorities
of the respective countries in which it operates. The amount of such provisions is based on various factors, such as experience of previous
tax audits and differing interpretations of tax regulations by the taxable and the responsible tax authority. Such differences in interpretation
may arise for a wide variety of issues depending on the conditions prevailing in the respective domicile of the group companies.

Impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash generating unit ("CGU") exceeds it recoverable amount, which is the higher of
its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The fair value less costs of disposal calculations is based on available data from
binding sales transactions, conducted at arm's length, for similar assets or observable market prices less incremental costs of disposing of
the asset. The value in calculation is based on a DCF model. The cash flows are derived from the budget for the next five years and do not
include restructuring activities that the group is not yet committed to or significant future investments that will enhance the asset's
performance of the CGU being tested. The recoverable amount is sensitive to the discount rate used for the DCF model as well as the
expected future cash-inflows and the growth rate used for extrapolation purposes.

The Group applied for the first time certain standards and amendments, which are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2016. The Group has not early adopted any other standard, interpretation or amendment that has been issued but is not yet

The nature and effect of these changes are disclosed below. Although these new standards and amendments applied for the first time in
2016, they did not have material impact on the annual consolidated financial statements of the Group. The nature and impact of each new
standard or amendment is described below:
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued
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2.3 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures continued

i) New and amended standards and interpretations continued

Amendments to IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements: Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests continued

Amendments to IAS 16 and IAS 38: Clarification of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and Amortisation

Amendments to IAS 27: Equity Method in Separate Financial Statements

IAS 19 Employee Benefits

Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IAS 28 Investment Entities: Applying the Consolidation Exception

ii) Standards issued but not effective

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

The amendments apply to both the acquisition of the initial interest in a joint operation and the acquisition of any additional interests in the
same joint operation and are applied prospectively. While PNG FM Limited invested further in Paradise Cinemas Limited, this did not result in
additional interest as the joint venturers also invested further in propotion to their shareholding.

The amendments to IAS 19 do not have any impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

The amendments allow entities to use the equity method to account for investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates in their
separate financial statements. Entities already applying IFRS and electing to change to the equity method in their separate financial
statements have to apply that change retrospectively. These amendments do not have any impact on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements as no change in policy occurred.

The amendments clarify the principle in IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment and IAS 38 Intangible Assets that revenue reflects a pattern of
economic benefits that are generated from operating a business (of which the asset is a part) rather than the economic benefits that are
consumed through use of the asset. As a result, a revenue-based method cannot be used to depreciate property, plant and equipment and
may only be used in very limited circumstances to amortise intangible assets. The amendments are applied prospectively and do not have
any impact on the Group, given that it has not used a revenue-based method to depreciate its non-current assets.

These amendments do not have any impact on the Group as the company or any entity in the Group is an investment entity as defined by
IFRS 10.

The standards and interpretations that are issued, but not yet effective, up to the date of issuance of the Group’s financial statements are
disclosed below. The Group intends to adopt these standards, if applicable, when they become effective.

In July 2014, the IASB issued the final version of IFRS 9 Financial Instruments that replaces IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement and all previous versions of IFRS 9. IFRS 9 brings together all three aspects of the accounting for financial instruments project:
classification and measurement, impairment and hedge accounting. IFRS 9 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2018, with early application permitted. Except for hedge accounting, retrospective application is required but providing comparative
information is not compulsory. For hedge accounting, the requirements are generally applied prospectively, with some limited exceptions.

The Group plans to adopt the new standard on the required effective date. The Group plans to assess the potential effect of IFRS 9 on its
consolidated financial in 2017.

IFRS 15 was issued in May 2014 and establishes a five-step model to account for revenue arising from contracts with customers. Under IFRS
15, revenue is recognised at an amount that reflects the consideration to which an entity expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring
goods or services to a customer.

The amendments address issues that have arisen in applying the investment entities exception under IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial
Statements. The amendments to IFRS 10 clarify that the exemption from presenting consolidated financial statements applies to a parent
entity that is a subsidiary of an investment entity, when the investment entity measures all of its subsidiaries at fair value.
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2.3 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures continued

ii) Standards issued but not effective continued

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers continued

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28: Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture

IAS 7 Disclosure Initiative – Amendments to IAS 7

IAS 12 Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealised Losses – Amendments to IAS 12

IFRS 16 Leases

Entities are required to apply the amendments retrospectively. However, on initial application of the amendments, the change in the opening
equity of the earliest comparative period may be recognised in opening retained earnings (or in another component of equity, as
appropriate), without allocating the change between opening retained earnings and other components of equity. Entities applying this relief
must disclose that fact.

These amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017 with early application permitted. If an entity
applies the amendments for an earlier period, it must disclose that fact. These amendments are not expected to have any impact on the
Group.

IFRS 16 was issued in January 2016 and it replaces IAS 17 Leases, IFRIC 4 Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease, SIC-15
Operating Leases-Incentives and SIC-27 Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving the Legal Form of a Lease. IFRS 16 sets out the
principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases and requires lessees to account for all leases under a
single on-balance sheet model similar to the accounting for finance leases under IAS 17. The standard includes two recognition exemptions
for lessees – leases of ’low-value’ assets (e.g., personal computers) and short-term leases (i.e., leases with a lease term of 12 months or
less). At the commencement date of a lease, a lessee will recognise a liability to make lease payments (i.e., the lease liability) and an asset
representing the right to use the underlying asset during the lease term (i.e., the right-of-use asset). Lessees will be required to separately
recognise the interest expense on the lease liability and the depreciation expense on the right-of-use asset.

Lessees will be also required to remeasure the lease liability upon the occurrence of certain events (e.g., a change in the lease term, a
change in future lease payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine those payments). The lessee will generally
recognise the amount of the remeasurement of the lease liability as an adjustment to the right-of-use asset.

Lessor accounting under IFRS 16 is substantially unchanged from today’s accounting under IAS 17. Lessors will continue to classify all leases
using the same classification principle as in IAS 17 and distinguish between two types of leases: operating and finance leases.

The new revenue standard will supersede all current revenue recognition requirements under IFRS. Either a full retrospective application or
a modified retrospective application is required for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018. Early adoption is permitted. The
Group plans to adopt the new standard on the required effective date using the full retrospective method. The Group plans to assess the
potential effect of IFRS 9 on its consolidated financial in 2017.

The amendments address the conflict between IFRS 10 and IAS 28 in dealing with the loss of control of a subsidiary that is sold or
contributed to an associate or joint venture. The amendments clarify that the gain or loss resulting from the sale or contribution of assets
that constitute a business, as defined in IFRS 3, between an investor and its associate or joint venture, is recognised in full. Any gain or loss
resulting from the sale or contribution of assets that do not constitute a business, however, is recognised only to the extent of unrelated
investors’ interests in the associate or joint venture. The IASB has deferred the effective date of these amendments indefinitely, but an
entity that early adopts the amendments must apply them prospectively.

The amendments to IAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows are part of the IASB’s Disclosure Initiative and require an entity to provide disclosures
that enable users of financial statements to evaluate changes in liabilities arising from financing activities, including both changes arising
from cash flows and non-cash changes. On initial application of the amendment, entities are not required to provide comparative information
for preceding periods. These amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017, with early application
permitted. Application of amendments will result in additional disclosure provided by the Group.

The amendments clarify that an entity needs to consider whether tax law restricts the sources of taxable profits against which it may make
deductions on the reversal of that deductible temporary difference. Furthermore, the amendments provide guidance on how an entity should
determine future taxable profits and explain the circumstances in which taxable profit may include the recovery of some assets for more
than their carrying amount.
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2.3 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures continued

ii) Standards issued but not effective continued

IFRS 16 Leases continued

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(a)

(b) Investment in associate or joint venture

IFRS 16 also requires lessees and lessors to make more extensive disclosures than under IAS 17.

IFRS 16 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019. Early application is permitted, but not before an entity applies
IFRS 15. A lessee can choose to apply the standard using either a full retrospective or a modified retrospective approach. The standard’s
transition provisions permit certain reliefs.

In 2017, the Group plans to assess the potential effect of IFRS 16 on its consolidated financial statements.

Under the equity method, the investment in an associate is initially recognized at cost. The carrying amount of the investment is adjusted to
recognize changes in the group's share of net assets of the associate or joint venture since the acquisition date. Goodwill relating to the
associate or joint venture is included in the carrying amount of the investment and is neither amortized nor individually tested for

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortized over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication
that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortization period and the amortization method for an intangible asset with a finite useful
life is reviewed at least at each financial year end. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future
economic benefits embodied in the asset is accounted for by changing the amortization period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as
a change in accounting estimate. The amortization expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognized in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income in the expense category consistent with the function of intangible asset.

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a business
combination is fair value as at the date of acquisition. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated
amortization and any accumulated impairment losses. Internally generated intangible assets, excluding capitalized development costs, are
not capitalized and expenditure is reflected in the Statement of Comprehensive Income in the year in which the expenditure is incurred.

The financial statements of the associate or joint venture are prepared for the same reporting period as the group. Where necessary,
adjustments are made to bring the accounting policies in line with those of the group.

The statement of profit or loss reflects the group's share of the results of operations of the associate or joint venture. Any change in other
comprehensive income of those investees is presented as part of the group's other comprehensive income. In addition, when there has been
a change recognized directly in the equity of the associate or joint venture, the group recognizes its share of any changes, when applicable,
in the statement of changes in equity. Unrealized gains or losses resulting from transactions between the group and the associate or joint
venture are eliminated to the extent of the interest in the associate or joint venture.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net assets of
the joint venture. Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the
relevant activities require unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment annually either individually or at the cash generating unit level. Such
intangibles are not amortized. The useful life of an intangible asset with an indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine whether
indefinite life assessment continues to be supportable. If not, the change is the useful life assessment from indefinite to finite is made on a
prospective basis.

Gains or losses arising from derecognizing of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the Statement of Comprehensive Income when the asset is derecognized.

The aggregate of the group's share of profit or loss of an associate or joint venture is shown on the face of the Statement of Comprehensive
Income and represents profit or loss after tax.

An associate is an entity over which the group has significant influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and
operating policy decisions of the investee, but is not control or joint control over those policies.

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite.
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2.3 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures continued

ii) Standards issued but not effective continued

IFRS 16 Leases continued

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(a)

(b) Investment in associate or joint venture

IFRS 16 also requires lessees and lessors to make more extensive disclosures than under IAS 17.

IFRS 16 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019. Early application is permitted, but not before an entity applies
IFRS 15. A lessee can choose to apply the standard using either a full retrospective or a modified retrospective approach. The standard’s
transition provisions permit certain reliefs.

In 2017, the Group plans to assess the potential effect of IFRS 16 on its consolidated financial statements.

Under the equity method, the investment in an associate is initially recognized at cost. The carrying amount of the investment is adjusted to
recognize changes in the group's share of net assets of the associate or joint venture since the acquisition date. Goodwill relating to the
associate or joint venture is included in the carrying amount of the investment and is neither amortized nor individually tested for

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortized over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication
that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortization period and the amortization method for an intangible asset with a finite useful
life is reviewed at least at each financial year end. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future
economic benefits embodied in the asset is accounted for by changing the amortization period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as
a change in accounting estimate. The amortization expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognized in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income in the expense category consistent with the function of intangible asset.

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a business
combination is fair value as at the date of acquisition. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated
amortization and any accumulated impairment losses. Internally generated intangible assets, excluding capitalized development costs, are
not capitalized and expenditure is reflected in the Statement of Comprehensive Income in the year in which the expenditure is incurred.

The financial statements of the associate or joint venture are prepared for the same reporting period as the group. Where necessary,
adjustments are made to bring the accounting policies in line with those of the group.

The statement of profit or loss reflects the group's share of the results of operations of the associate or joint venture. Any change in other
comprehensive income of those investees is presented as part of the group's other comprehensive income. In addition, when there has been
a change recognized directly in the equity of the associate or joint venture, the group recognizes its share of any changes, when applicable,
in the statement of changes in equity. Unrealized gains or losses resulting from transactions between the group and the associate or joint
venture are eliminated to the extent of the interest in the associate or joint venture.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net assets of
the joint venture. Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the
relevant activities require unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment annually either individually or at the cash generating unit level. Such
intangibles are not amortized. The useful life of an intangible asset with an indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine whether
indefinite life assessment continues to be supportable. If not, the change is the useful life assessment from indefinite to finite is made on a
prospective basis.

Gains or losses arising from derecognizing of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the Statement of Comprehensive Income when the asset is derecognized.

The aggregate of the group's share of profit or loss of an associate or joint venture is shown on the face of the Statement of Comprehensive
Income and represents profit or loss after tax.

An associate is an entity over which the group has significant influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and
operating policy decisions of the investee, but is not control or joint control over those policies.

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies continued

(b) Investment in associate or joint venture continued

(c)

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment annually as at 31 December either individually or at the cash
generating unit level, as appropriate.

The group assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any such indication exists, or
when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the group estimates the asset's recoverable amount. An asset's recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset's or cash-generating unit's fair value less costs to sell and its value in use and is determined for an individual
asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or other groups of assets.
Where the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its
recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less
costs to sell, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for
publicly traded subsidiary or other available fair value indicators.

Associate and joint venture

For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that previously recognized
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such indication exists, the Group makes an estimate of recoverable amount.
A previously recognized impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the asset's
recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognized. If that is the case the carrying amount of the asset is increased to its
recoverable amount. That increased amount cannot exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had
no impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognized in the Statement of Comprehensive Income
unless the asset is carried at revalued amount, in which case the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase.

Impairment losses of continuing operations are recognized in the Statement of Comprehensive Income in those expense categories
consistent with the function of the impaired assets, except for property previously revalued where the revaluation was taken to equity. In
this case, the impairment is also recognized in equity up to the amount of any previous revaluation.

The following criteria are also applied in assessing impairment of specific assets:

Upon loss of significant influence over the associate or joint control over the joint venture, the group measures and recognizes any retained
investment at its fair value. Any difference between the carrying amount of the associate or joint venture upon loss of significant influence
or joint control and the fair value of the retained investment and proceeds from disposal is recognized in profit or loss.

Impairment is determined for goodwill by assessing the recoverable amount of the cash-generating units, to which the goodwill relates.
Where the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is less than their carrying amount an impairment loss is recognized. Impairment
losses relating to goodwill cannot be reversed in future periods. The group performs its annual impairment test of goodwill as at 31

Goodwill

Impairment of non-financial assets

After application of the equity method, the group determines whether it is necessary to recognize an additional impairment loss of the
group's investment in its associate or joint venture. The group determines at each balance date whether there is any objective evidence that
the investment in associate or joint venture and the acquisition cost requires impairment and recognizes the amount in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income.

After application of the equity method, the group determines whether it is necessary to recognize an impairment loss on its investment in its
associate or joint venture. At each reporting date, the group determines whether there is objective evidence that the investment in the
associate or joint venture is impaired. If there is such evidence, the group calculates the amount of impairment as the difference between the
recoverable amount of the associate or joint venture and its carrying value, then recognizes the loss as 'Share of profit of associate or joint
venture' in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Intangible assets

The group assesses whether there are any indication that goodwill is impaired at each reporting date. Goodwill is tested for impairment
annually and when circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies continued

(b) Investment in associate or joint venture continued

(c)

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment annually as at 31 December either individually or at the cash
generating unit level, as appropriate.

The group assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any such indication exists, or
when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the group estimates the asset's recoverable amount. An asset's recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset's or cash-generating unit's fair value less costs to sell and its value in use and is determined for an individual
asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or other groups of assets.
Where the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its
recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less
costs to sell, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for
publicly traded subsidiary or other available fair value indicators.

Associate and joint venture

For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that previously recognized
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such indication exists, the Group makes an estimate of recoverable amount.
A previously recognized impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the asset's
recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognized. If that is the case the carrying amount of the asset is increased to its
recoverable amount. That increased amount cannot exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had
no impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognized in the Statement of Comprehensive Income
unless the asset is carried at revalued amount, in which case the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase.

Impairment losses of continuing operations are recognized in the Statement of Comprehensive Income in those expense categories
consistent with the function of the impaired assets, except for property previously revalued where the revaluation was taken to equity. In
this case, the impairment is also recognized in equity up to the amount of any previous revaluation.

The following criteria are also applied in assessing impairment of specific assets:

Upon loss of significant influence over the associate or joint control over the joint venture, the group measures and recognizes any retained
investment at its fair value. Any difference between the carrying amount of the associate or joint venture upon loss of significant influence
or joint control and the fair value of the retained investment and proceeds from disposal is recognized in profit or loss.

Impairment is determined for goodwill by assessing the recoverable amount of the cash-generating units, to which the goodwill relates.
Where the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is less than their carrying amount an impairment loss is recognized. Impairment
losses relating to goodwill cannot be reversed in future periods. The group performs its annual impairment test of goodwill as at 31

Goodwill

Impairment of non-financial assets

After application of the equity method, the group determines whether it is necessary to recognize an additional impairment loss of the
group's investment in its associate or joint venture. The group determines at each balance date whether there is any objective evidence that
the investment in associate or joint venture and the acquisition cost requires impairment and recognizes the amount in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income.

After application of the equity method, the group determines whether it is necessary to recognize an impairment loss on its investment in its
associate or joint venture. At each reporting date, the group determines whether there is objective evidence that the investment in the
associate or joint venture is impaired. If there is such evidence, the group calculates the amount of impairment as the difference between the
recoverable amount of the associate or joint venture and its carrying value, then recognizes the loss as 'Share of profit of associate or joint
venture' in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Intangible assets

The group assesses whether there are any indication that goodwill is impaired at each reporting date. Goodwill is tested for impairment
annually and when circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies continued

(d)

(e)

(f)

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Costs includes invoice value plus associated costs incurred in bringing
each product to its present location and condition.

Inventories

The group determines the classification of its financial assets on initial recognition and, where allowed and appropriate, re-evaluates this
designation at each financial year end.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and the estimated
costs necessary to make the sale.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment was recognized, the previously recognized impairment loss is reversed, to the extent that the carrying value of the
asset does not exceed its amortized cost at the reversal date. Any subsequent reversal of an impairment loss is recognized in the Statement
of Comprehensive Income.

Impairment of financial assets

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are measured at amortized cost. This is computed using the effective interest method less any allowance for
impairment. The calculation takes into account any premium or discount on acquisition and includes transaction costs and fees that are an
integral part of the effective interest rate.

Financial assets within the scope of IAS 39 are classified as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables, held to
maturity investments or available-for-sale financial assets, as appropriate. When financial assets are recognized initially, they are measured
at fair value, plus, in the case of investments not at fair value through profit or loss, directly attributable transactions costs.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognized on the trade date, which is the date that the group commits to
purchase the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the period
generally established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. After
initial measurement loans and receivables are carried at amortized cost using the effective interest method less any allowance for
impairment. Gains and losses are recognized in the Statement of Comprehensive Income when the loans and receivables are derecognized or
impaired, as well as through the amortization process.

Investments and other financial assets

In relation to trade receivables, a provision for impairment is made when there is objective evidence (such as the probability of insolvency or
significant financial difficulties of the debtor) that the Group will not be able to collect all of the amounts due under the original terms of the
invoice. The carrying amount of the receivable is reduced through use of an allowance account. Impaired debts are derecognized when they
are assessed as uncollectible.

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on assets carried at amortized cost has been incurred, the amount of the loss is
measured as the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future
expected credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted at the financial asset's original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective
interest rate computed at initial recognition). The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through use of an allowance account. The amount
of the loss shall be recognized in Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Fair value

The fair value of investments that are actively traded in organized financial markets is determined by reference to quoted market bid prices
at the close of business at balance date. For investments where there is no active market, fair value is determined using valuation
techniques. Such techniques include using recent arm's length market transaction; reference to the current market value of another
instrument which is substantially the same; discounted cash flow analysis or other valuation models.

Amortized cost

Assets carried at amortized cost

The Group assess at each balance date whether a financial asset or group of financial assets is impaired.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies continued

(g) Cash and cash equivalents

(h) Trade and other receivables

(i) Trade and other payables

(j) Financial liabilities

Interest-bearing loans and borrowings

(k) Borrowing costs

(l) Property, plant and equipment

Buildings 2%
Plant and equipment 5% - 30%
Motor vehicles 15% - 18%

(m) Leases

Capitalized leased assets are depreciated over the period the benefit is expected to be realized from their use.

All loans and borrowings are initially recognized at fair value less directly attributable transaction costs, and have not been designated "as at
fair value through profit or loss". After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortized
cost using the effective interest rate method. Gains and losses are recognized in the comprehensive income when the liabilities are
derecognized as well as through the amortization process.

Trade receivables are recognized at original invoice amount (inclusive of VAT) less any provision for uncollectible debts. Bad debts are
written off during the year in which they become known. A specific provision is raised for any doubtful debts.

Borrowing costs are recognized as an expense when incurred.

The carrying values of property, plant and equipment are reviewed for impairment when events or changes in circumstances indicate the
carrying value may not be recoverable. If any such indication exists and where the carrying values exceed the estimated recoverable
amount, the assets or cash-generating units are written down to their recoverable amount.

Finance leases, which transfer to the group substantially all the risks and benefits incidental to the ownership of the leased item, are
capitalized at the inception of the lease at the fair value of the leased property or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease
payments.

Liabilities for trade payables and other amounts are carried at cost (inclusive of VAT where applicable) which is the fair value of the
consideration to be paid in the future for goods and services received whether or not billed to the entity.

Property, plant and equipment are stated at deemed cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment in value. The principal
depreciation rates in use are:

The recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment is greater of net selling price and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. For an asset that does not generate largely independent cash inflows, the
recoverable amount is determined for the cash generating unit to which the asset belongs. Impairment losses are recognized in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Profit and loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment are taken into account in determining profit or loss for the year.

Leases where the lessor retains substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the asset are classified as operating leases. Operating
lease payments are recognized as an expense in the Statement of Comprehensive Income on a straight line basis over the lease term.

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand. For the purposes of the Statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalents
consist of cash and cash equivalents as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies continued

(n) Revenue

Rendering of services

Dividends

Revenue is recognized when the shareholders' right to receive the payment is established.

Rental income

(o) Employee benefits

Annual leave

Long service leave

(p) Foreign currencies

(q) Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition is measured as the aggregate of the
consideration transferred measured at acquisition date fair value and the amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree. For each
business combination, the group elects whether to measure the non-controlling interests in the acquiree at fair value or at the proportionate
share of the acquiree's identifiable net assets. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred and included in expenses.

Rental income is accounted for on a straight line basis over the lease term on ongoing leases.

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the group and the revenue can be reliably
measured. The following specific recognition criteria must also be met before revenue is recognized:

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and designation in
accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the
separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts by the acquiree.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates as at the
dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at
the date when fair value is determined.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Fiji dollars, which is the holding company's functional and presentation currency.
Each entity in the group determines its own functional currency and items included in the financial statements of each entity are measured
using that functional currency. Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded at the functional currency rate ruling at the date of
transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the functional currency rate of exchange
ruling at balance date. All differences are taken to profit or loss with the exception of differences on foreign currency borrowings that
provide a hedge against a net investment in a foreign entity. These are taken directly to equity until the disposal of the net investment, at
which time they are recognized in comprehensive income. Tax charges and credits attributable to exchange differences on those borrowings
are also dealt with in equity.

The liability for employees’ entitlements to long service leave represents the amount payable to employees, based on current wage and
salary rates, for services provided up to balance date. The liability for long service leave increases according to the number of years of
service completed by the employee.

Radio revenue is recognized when commercials are played or service is delivered. Proceeds from advance deposits are not recognized as
revenue until the subsequent playing of commercials or delivery of service is performed.

Provision is made for annual leave to be payable to employees on the basis of statutory requirement on employment contract.

The assets and liabilities of foreign operations are translated into Fiji dollars at the rate of exchange ruling at balance date and its income
statement is translated at the weighted average exchange rate for the year. The exchange difference arising on translation are taken directly
to a separate component of equity. On disposal of the foreign entity, the deferred cumulative amount recognized in equity relating to that
particular foreign operation is recognized in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies continued

(q) Business combinations and goodwill continued

(r) Taxes

Current income tax

Current income tax relating to items recognized directly in equity is recognized in equity and not in comprehensive income.

Deferred tax

Deferred income tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences, except:

-

-

-

- in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiary, associates and interests in joint ventures,
deferred tax assets are recognized only to the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the
foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilized.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. For the purpose of impairment testing,
goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to each of the group’s cash-generating units that are
expected to benefit from the combination, irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the acquiree are assigned to those units.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, any previously held equity interest is re-measured at its acquisition date fair value and any
resulting gain or loss is recognized in profit or loss. It is then considered in the determination of goodwill.

in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiary, associates and interest in joint ventures,
except where the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

where the deferred income tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of an asset or
liability in a transaction that it is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit
nor taxable profit or loss; and

Deferred income tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences at balance date between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit and part of the operation within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated
with the disposed operation is included in the carrying amount of the operation when determining the gain or loss on disposal. Goodwill
disposed in these circumstances is measured based on the relative values of the disposed operation and the portion of the cash-generating
unit retained.

Current income tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid
to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted at
balance date.

where the deferred income tax liability arises from goodwill amortization or the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable
profit or loss; and

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate of the consideration transferred and the amount recognized for non-
controlling interests, and any previous interest held, over the net identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the fair value of the
net assets acquired is in excess of the aggregate consideration transferred, the group re-assesses whether it has correctly identified all of
the assets acquired and all of the liabilities assumed and reviews the procedures used to measure the amounts to be recognized at the
acquisition date. If the re-assessment still results in an excess of the fair value of net assets acquired over the aggregate consideration
transferred, then the gain is recognized in profit or loss.

Deferred income tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax
losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry
forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilized except:
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies continued

(r) Taxes continued

Deferred tax continued

Sales tax

-

-

(s) Comparatives

3. SEGMENT INFORMATION

(a) Geographical segments

Year ended 31 December 2016 PNG Fiji Eliminations Total
$ $ $ $

Revenue
External sales 5,759,983            5,521,551 -           11,281,534

5,759,983            5,521,551 -           11,281,534

Results
Segment result 162,158            1,714,468                    14,145            1,890,771
Unallocated expenses -                             -                               -                             -
Profit from operating activities 162,158            1,714,468                    14,145            1,890,771

Net finance costs                (56,197)               (39,530)                            -                  (95,727)
Impairment loss          (1,527,560)                          -                               -            (1,527,560)
Share of (loss)/profit of associate or joint venture (652,672)              140,676                             -                (511,996)

(Loss)/profit before income tax          (2,074,271)           1,815,614                    14,145              (244,512)
Income tax benefit/(expense)              (933,085)             (157,848)                            -            (1,090,933)
Net (loss)/profit          (3,007,356)           1,657,766                    14,145          (1,335,445)

receivables and payables are stated with the amount of sales tax included.

Deferred income tax assets and deferred income tax liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes related to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Where necessary, amounts relating to prior year have been reclassified to conform with presentation in the current year.

where the sales tax incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the taxation authority, in which case the
sales tax is recognized as part of the acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense item as applicable; and

Revenue, expenses and assets are recognized net of the amount of sales tax except:

The net amount of sales taxes recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as part of receivables or payables in the
Statement of Financial Position.

The following tables present revenue and profit information and certain asset and liability information regarding geographical
segments for the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015.

The carrying amount of deferred income tax assets is reviewed at each balance date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilized. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are
reassessed at each balance date and are recognized to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profit will allow the
deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the year when the asset is realized or
the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the balance date. Deferred tax
relating to items recognized directly in equity is recognized in equity and not in profit or loss.

The company and its subsidiary operate predominantly in the commercial radio services industry. The holding company operates in Suva, Fiji
while its subsidiary operates in Port Moresby, Papua New Guinea.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies continued

 (r)  Taxes continued

(s)   Comparatives

3.    SEGMENT INFORMATION

(a)   Geographical segments

PNG
$

Fiji
$

Total
$

Eliminations
$
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COMMUNICATIONS (FIJI) LIMITED and Subsidiary company
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

3.    SEGMENT INFORMATION continued

COMMUNICATIONS (FIJI) LIMITED and Subsidiary company
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

3. SEGMENT INFORMATION continued

Year ended 31 December 2016 PNG Fiji Eliminations Total
$ $ $ $

Assets and liabilities
Segment assets 5,050,195            8,571,841            (1,387,564)        12,234,472
Investment in associate or joint venture -              2,036,629                             -              2,036,629
Total assets 5,050,195         10,608,470            (1,387,564)        14,271,101

Segment liabilities 3,640,011            1,351,334               (745,988)           4,245,357

Total liabilities 3,640,011            1,351,334               (745,988)           4,245,357

Other segment information
Capital expenditure:
- tangible fixed assets 240,401               905,680                             -              1,146,081
- intangible assets -                      1,155                             -                      1,155

Amortization of intangible assets 6,198                  82,645                             -                    88,843
Depreciation 465,312               509,081                             -                 974,393
Doubtful and bad debts 242,354                           -                               -                 242,354

Cash flows
Operating activities 1,050,573            1,612,276
Investing activities          (2,235,720)             (787,762)
Financing activities 2,001,081              (694,254)

Year ended 31 December 2015 PNG Fiji Eliminations Total
$ $ $ $

Revenue
External sales 7,355,516            4,871,660 -           12,227,176

7,355,516            4,871,660 -           12,227,176

Result
Segment result (704,253)           1,150,296              1,677,909            2,123,952
Unallocated expenses -                             -                               -                             -
(Loss)/profit from operating activities (704,253)           1,150,296              1,677,909            2,123,952

Net finance costs                (15,784)               (65,636)                            -                  (81,420)
Impairment loss          (1,147,715)                          -                               -            (1,147,715)
Share of (loss)/profit of associate or joint venture (854,265)              768,965                             -                  (85,300)

Profit before income tax          (1,574,302)           1,853,625              1,677,909               809,517
Income tax expense 774,424              (128,428)                            -                 645,996
Net(loss)/ profit (799,878)           1,725,197              1,677,909            1,455,513

Assets and liabilities
Segment assets 5,950,345            7,661,082            (1,032,468)        12,578,959
Investment in associate or joint venture -              1,970,953                             -              1,970,953
Total assets 5,950,345            9,632,035            (1,032,468)        14,549,912

Segment liabilities 1,362,906            1,748,025               (424,675)           2,686,256
Total liabilities 1,362,906            1,748,025               (424,675)           2,686,256
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COMMUNICATIONS (FIJI) LIMITED and Subsidiary company
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016
COMMUNICATIONS (FIJI) LIMITED and Subsidiary company
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

3. SEGMENT INFORMATION continued

(a) Geographical segments continued

Year ended 31 December 2015 continued PNG Fiji Eliminations Total

$ $ $ $
Other segment information
Capital expenditure:
- tangible fixed assets 276,371               477,555                             -                 753,926
- intangible assets 2,332                  11,712                             -                    14,044
Amortization of intangible assets 7,007                  81,398                             -                    88,405
Depreciation 509,730               470,910                             -                 980,640
Doubtful and bad debts 40,362                  27,000                             -                    67,362

(b) Business segments

4. REVENUE AND EXPENSES
2016 2015 2016 2015

$ $ $ $

Revenue, expenses and finance costs for the year include the following:

4.1 Radio income
Advertising income 10,521,827 11,525,893 5,185,854 4,679,548

759,707 701,283 335,697 192,112

11,281,534 12,227,176 5,521,551 4,871,660

4.2 Other revenue
Other income 383,003 657,709 382,727 286,599
Gain on disposal of assets 26,738 314 - 314
Cinema advertising 816,583 710,354 756,088 710,354
Management fees - - 291,087 309,763

1,226,324 1,368,377 1,429,902 1,307,030

4.3 Salaries and employee benefits
FNPF and FNU levy 403,609 314,791 242,307 222,772
Salaries and wages 2,566,034 2,733,556 1,698,489 1,672,000
Staff commission and bonus 339,447 397,868 305,894 240,313
Staff training 42,637 66,257 - 2,361

3,351,727 3,512,472 2,246,690 2,137,446

4.4 Depreciation and amortization
Depreciation 974,393 980,639 509,081 470,910
Amortization of intangibles assets 88,843 88,405 82,645 81,398

1,063,236 1,069,044 591,726 552,308

Inter-segment revenues are eliminated upon consolidation and reflected in the 'adjustments and eliminations' column.

Total Event Company Limited income and other
commercial income

Holding Company

The company and its subsidiary both operate predominantly in the commercial radio services industry. Revenue, expenditure and
certain asset information regarding business segments for the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015 are the same as that
disclosed for geographical segments above.

Group
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3.    SEGMENT INFORMATION continued

 (a) Geographical segments continued

 (b) Business segments

4.    REVENUE AND EXPENSES

PNG

$

Fiji

$

Total

$

Eliminations

$

Holding CompanyGroup
2016 20162015 2015

$ $ $ $
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COMMUNICATIONS (FIJI) LIMITED and Subsidiary company
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016
COMMUNICATIONS (FIJI) LIMITED and Subsidiary company
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

4. REVENUE AND EXPENSES continued
2016 2015 2016 2015

$ $ $ $

4.5 Other expenses
Auditors remuneration - audit fees 34,900 34,900 12,900 12,900
                                         - other services 1,750 1,750 1,750 1,750
Bad debts - 90,565 - -
Directors’ remuneration 265,191 233,678 159,462 126,962
Doubtful debts 242,354 67,362 - 27,000
Operating lease rentals 769,675 835,527 220,945 214,996
Other operating expenses 4,888,254 5,626,303 2,003,512 1,955,032

6,202,124 6,890,085 2,398,569 2,338,640

4.6 Finance costs
Finance charges payable under finance leases - 4,834 - -
Bank loans 95,727 76,586 39,530 65,636

95,727 81,420 39,530 65,636

4.7 Share of (loss)/profit of associate or joint venture
Share of profit from 231 Waimanu Rd Holdings Limited 140,676 768,965 140,676 768,965
Share of loss from Paradise Cinemas (PNG) Limited (652,672) (854,265) - -

(511,996) (85,300) 140,676 768,965

5. INCOME TAX $ $ $ $

The major components of income tax expense for the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015 are:

Accounting profit/(loss) before income tax (244,512) 809,517 1,815,614 1,853,625

(24,451) 80,952 181,561 185,363
Effect of higher tax rates in PNG (412,027) (208,821) - -
Reversal/(recognition) of previously unrecognised tax losses (4,244) (474,685) - -
Tax effect of non-deductible items 652,769 (151,724) (6,751) (156,940)

14,068 76,897 14,068 76,897

Reversal of deferred tax assets 936,410 - - -
Other (34,368) 3,542 (31,265) 548
Under/(over) provision from prior year (37,224) 27,843 235 22,560

Income tax (benefit)/expense attributable to operating profit 1,090,933 (645,996) 157,848 128,428

(a) Consolidated income statement
Current income tax:
Current income tax charge 227,713 443,163 190,475 129,863

Adjustments in respect of previous year (37,224) 27,842 235 22,560
Origination and reversal of temporary differences 900,444 (1,117,001) (32,862) (23,995)
Income tax (benefit)/expense 1,090,933 (645,996) 157,848 128,428

Holding Company

Prima facie tax thereon at the Fiji rate of 10%

Group

A reconciliation between tax expense and the product of accounting profit/(loss) multiplied by Fiji's domestic tax rate for the years ended 31
December 2016 and 2015 is as follows:

Share of loss/(profit) of associate or joint venture non-
deductible/non-taxable
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4.    REVENUE AND EXPENSES continued

5.   INCOME TAX

Holding CompanyGroup
2016 20162015 2015

$ $ $ $

$ $ $ $
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COMMUNICATIONS (FIJI) LIMITED and Subsidiary company
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 
COMMUNICATIONS (FIJI) LIMITED and Subsidiary company
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

5. INCOME TAX continued
2016 2015 2016 2015

$ $ $ $

(b) Deferred tax
Deferred tax assets/liabilities at 31 December relates to the following:

Provision for doubtful debts 59,248 48,517 4,575 4,575
Employee entitlements 59,176 52,926 10,934 9,003

(226,635) (243,068) (150,114) (180,920)
47,462 43,230 - -

Provision for impairment loss - 953,879 - -

Net deferred tax liability (60,749) 855,484 (134,605) (167,342)

Represented on the consolidated balance sheet as:

Deferred income tax asset 73,856 1,022,826 - -
Deferred tax liability (134,605) (167,342) (134,605) (167,342)

(60,749) 855,484 (134,605) (167,342)

6. EARNINGS PER SHARE $ $

Operating profit after income tax (1,335,445) 1,455,513

Weighted average number of shares outstanding 3,558,000 3,558,000
Basic earnings per share (cents) (37.53) 40.91

7. DIVIDENDS PAID AND PROPOSED $ $ $ $

Declared and paid in year:
Interim dividend for 2015: 8 cents - 284,640 - 284,640
Final dividend for 2015:  4 cents - 142,320 - 142,320
Interim dividend for 2016: 8 cents 284,640 - 284,640 -
Dividends declared and paid 284,640 426,960 284,640 426,960

8. TRADE RECEIVABLES $ $ $ $

Trade receivables 2,219,149 2,553,483 1,319,625 1,053,758
Provision for doubtful debts (142,370) (192,228) (45,754) (45,754)

2,076,779 2,361,255 1,273,871 1,008,004

Receivable from related entities - 92,538 799,449 505,746

2,076,779 2,453,793 2,073,320 1,513,750

Group

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on 30-90 day terms. At 31 December 2016, trade receivables of the group at
nominal value of $142,370 (2015: $192,228) were impaired and fully provided for. Movements in the provision for impairment of
receivables were as follows:

Accelerated depreciation for tax purposes and other

There are no convertible redeemable preference shares for the group. There have been no transaction involving ordinary shares or potential
ordinary shares between the reporting date and the date of completion of these financial statements.

Accruals and prepayments

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit for the year attributable to ordinary shareholders by the weighted average
number of shares outstanding during the year.

For terms and conditions relating to related party receivable, refer Note 24.

Holding Company
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5.    INCOME TAX continued

8.    TRADE RECEIVABLES

6.   EARNINGS PER SHARE

7.   DIVIDENDS PAID AND PROPOSED

Holding CompanyGroup
2016 20162015 2015

$ $ $ $

$ $ $ $
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COMMUNICATIONS (FIJI) LIMITED and Subsidiary company
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016
COMMUNICATIONS (FIJI) LIMITED and Subsidiary company
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

8. TRADE RECEIVABLES continued
2016 2015 2016 2015

$ $ $ $

At 1 January 192,228               148,329                    45,754                  38,560
Charge for the year 242,354                 67,362 -                  27,000
Utilized              (192,802)               (19,806) - (19,806)
Translation adjustment                (99,410) (3,657) - -
At 31 December 142,370               192,228                    45,754                  45,754

At 31 December, the ageing analysis of trade receivables for the group is as follows:

Past due but not impaired

Total < 30 days 30 - 60 days 60 - 90 days > 90 days
2016 1,474,069 502,866 68,606 31,238
2015 1,467,988 547,000 153,352 192,915

At 31 December, the ageing analysis of trade receivables for the company is as follows:

Past due but not impaired

Total < 30 days 30 - 60 days 60 - 90 days > 90 days
2016 920,597 342,091 11,183 -
2015 783,608 208,628 15,768 -

2016 2015 2016 2015
9. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS $ $ $ $

(a)

Cash at bank 1,405,902               432,845                 366,623               236,363
1,405,902               432,845                 366,623               236,363

10. INVENTORIES $ $ $ $

Total Event Company Limited merchandise - 4,734 - 4,734

11. PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER ASSETS $ $ $ $

Current

Refundable deposits 137,175 133,566 56,312 57,482
Prepayments 130,709 122,373 47,420 36,855
Other receivables 96,901 100,694 27,358 13,647

364,785 356,633 131,090 107,984

12. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARY $ $ $ $

- Total Event Company Limited - - 2 2
- PNG FM Pty Limited - - 1,725,115 1,725,115

- - 1,725,117 1,725,117

2,076,779

1,273,871

The amount of write-down of inventories recognized as an expense was $4,734 (2015: Nil).

1,008,004

2,361,255

Cash at bank earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit rates. Short-term deposits are made for varying periods of between
one day and three months, depending on the immediate requirements of the group, and earn interest at the respective short-term deposit
rates.

Group Holding Company

Group Holding Company

Communications (Fiji) Limited holds 100% of the ordinary shares of PNG FM Pty Limited. The results of PNG FM Pty Limited have been
consolidated in these financial statements. The results of Total Event Company Limited is included in the results of the holding company.

For the purpose of the consolidated Statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise the following at 31 December:
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8.    TRADE RECEIVABLES continued

9.    CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

10.  INVENTORIES

11. PREPATMENTS AND OTHERS ASSETS

12. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARY
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016
COMMUNICATIONS (FIJI) LIMITED and Subsidiary company
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

13. INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATE OR JOINT VENTURE 2016 2015

(a) Investment of Communications (Fiji) Limited in 231 Waimanu Rd Holdings Limited $ $

Current assets, including cash and cash equivalents and prepayments 98,991 115,955
Non-current assets 4,640,812 4,497,972
Current liabilities, including tax payable (11,840) (18,305)
Non-current liabilities, including deferred tax liabilities (654,705) (653,716)
Net assets 4,073,258 3,941,906

Proportion of the group's ownership 50% 50%
Carrying amount of investment - 231 Waimanu Rd Holdings Limited 2,036,629 1,970,953

Summarized statement of profit or loss of 231 Waimanu Rd Holdings Limited:

Revenue 413,332 419,840
Expenses (61,604) (88,159)
Change in fair value of investment property - 1,272,644
Profit before tax 351,728 1,604,325
Income tax expense (70,376) (66,396)
Profit for the year 281,352 1,537,929

Group's share of profit for the year 140,676 768,965

(b) Investment of PNG FM Limited in Paradise Cinemas (PNG) Limited

Current assets, including cash and cash equivalents and prepayments 418,747 590,007
Non-current assets 6,955,098 7,943,982
Current liabilities, including tax payable (2,199,275) (3,044,321)
Non-current liabilities, including deferred tax liabilities (484,176) (3,725,649)
Net assets 4,690,394 1,764,019

Proportion of the group's ownership 43.87% 43.87%
Original investment - Paradise Cinemas (PNG) Limited 4,997,260 3,179,597
Less: Cumulative share of losses (2,604,865) (2,031,882)
Less: Additional impairment loss
- At 1 January (1,147,715) -
- Addition impairment loss (1,527,560) (1,147,715)
- Translation adjustments 282,880 -
Net Carrying amount of investment - Paradise Cinemas (PNG) Limited - -

Summarized statement of profit or loss of Paradise Cinemas (PNG) Limited:

Revenue 5,892,576 6,562,219
Expenses (7,380,274) (8,509,427)
Loss before tax (1,487,698) (1,947,208)
Income tax expense - -
Loss for the year (1,487,698) (1,947,208)

Group's share of loss for the year (652,672) (854,265)

The holding company has a shareholding of 50% interest in 231 Waimanu Rd Holdings Limited, a company involved in property management.
The company's investment in 231 Waimanu Rd Holdings Limited is accounted for using the equity method. Summarized financial information
of 231 Waimanu Rd Holdings Limited, based on its financial statements, and reconciliation with the carrying amount of the investment are
set out below:

The subsidiary, PNG FM Limited has a 43.87% (2015: 43.87%) shareholding in Paradise Cinemas (PNG) Limited, a company involved in
cinema entertainment in Papua New Guinea. The group's investment in Paradise Cinemas (PNG) Limited is accounted for using the equity
method in the consolidated financial statements. Summarized financial information of Paradise Cinemas (PNG) Limited, based on its audited
financial statements and reconciliation with the carrying amount of the investment are set out below:

PNG FM Limited made an additional investment in Paradise Cinemas (PNG) Limited during the year along with its joint venture partners. Its
investment in the Joint Venture is 43.87% (2015: 43.87%).

231 Waimanu Rd Holdings Limited had no contingent liabilities or capital commitments as at 31 December 2016 and 2015.
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13. INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATE OR JOINT VENTURE 2016

$

2015

$

2,036,629 1,970,953
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Loss for the year
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COMMUNICATIONS (FIJI) LIMITED and Subsidiary company
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016
COMMUNICATIONS (FIJI) LIMITED and Subsidiary company
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

13. INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATE OR JOINT VENTURE continued 2016 2015

(b) Investment of PNG FM Limited in Paradise Cinemas (PNG) Limited continued $ $

Total investment in associate or joint venture 2,036,629 1,970,953

14. FINANCIAL ASSETS
2016 2015 2016 2015

$ $ $ $

Shares in i-Pac Communications Limited 591,884 591,884 591,884 591,884

15. INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Holding company $ $
Software
Cost:
At 1 January 915,858 909,068
Additions 1,155 11,712
Disposal - (4,922)
At 31 December 917,013 915,858

Depreciation and impairment:
At 1 January 541,608 465,132
Disposal - (4,922)
Depreciation charge for the year 82,645 81,398
At 31 December 624,253 541,608

Net book value 292,760 374,250

Group  Goodwill  Software  Total

Cost: $ $ $
At 1 January 2016 1,507,569 979,576 2,487,145
Additions - 1,155 1,155
Disposal - -
Translation adjustment - (4,758) (4,758)
At 31 December 2016 1,507,569 975,973 2,483,542

Depreciation and impairment:
At 1 January 2016 370,569 555,777 926,346
Depreciation charge for the year - 88,843 88,843
Disposal - -
Translation adjustment - (1,414) (1,414)
At 31 December 2016 370,569 643,206 1,013,775

Net written down value:
At 31 December 2016 1,137,000 332,767 1,469,767

At 1 January 2016 1,137,000 423,799 1,560,799

In prior year, the holding company authorised PNG FM Limited to issue a qualified letter of support for the operations of Paradise Cinemas
(PNG) Ltd limited to the guarantee the subsidiary company issued to Westpac Bank, PNG. At 31 December 2015, the contingent liability
from the guarantee is estimated at K2.9m. During this financial year, PNG FM Limited invested a further PGK 3 million in Paradise Cinemas

Group

The company's shares in i-Pac Communications Limited are subject to put option that is now exercisable subject to a agreed valuation of the
company.

During the year, the company's subsidiary, PNG FM Limited invested a further PGK 3 million in Paradise Cinemas Limited to enable the entity
to settle its bank loan and release PNG FM Limited from its liability as guarantor of the loan.

Holding Company

231 Waimanu Rd Holdings Limited and PNG FM Limited are not listed on any stock exchange.
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13. INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATE OR JOINT VENTURE continued 2016                           2015
$                                  $

COMMUNICATIONS (FIJI) LIMITED and Subsidiary company
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

13. INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATE OR JOINT VENTURE continued 2016 2015

(b) Investment of PNG FM Limited in Paradise Cinemas (PNG) Limited continued $ $

Total investment in associate or joint venture 2,036,629 1,970,953

14. FINANCIAL ASSETS
2016 2015 2016 2015

$ $ $ $

Shares in i-Pac Communications Limited 591,884 591,884 591,884 591,884

15. INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Holding company $ $
Software
Cost:
At 1 January 915,858 909,068
Additions 1,155 11,712
Disposal - (4,922)
At 31 December 917,013 915,858

Depreciation and impairment:
At 1 January 541,608 465,132
Disposal - (4,922)
Depreciation charge for the year 82,645 81,398
At 31 December 624,253 541,608

Net book value 292,760 374,250

Group  Goodwill  Software  Total

Cost: $ $ $
At 1 January 2016 1,507,569 979,576 2,487,145
Additions - 1,155 1,155
Disposal - -
Translation adjustment - (4,758) (4,758)
At 31 December 2016 1,507,569 975,973 2,483,542

Depreciation and impairment:
At 1 January 2016 370,569 555,777 926,346
Depreciation charge for the year - 88,843 88,843
Disposal - -
Translation adjustment - (1,414) (1,414)
At 31 December 2016 370,569 643,206 1,013,775

Net written down value:
At 31 December 2016 1,137,000 332,767 1,469,767

At 1 January 2016 1,137,000 423,799 1,560,799

In prior year, the holding company authorised PNG FM Limited to issue a qualified letter of support for the operations of Paradise Cinemas
(PNG) Ltd limited to the guarantee the subsidiary company issued to Westpac Bank, PNG. At 31 December 2015, the contingent liability
from the guarantee is estimated at K2.9m. During this financial year, PNG FM Limited invested a further PGK 3 million in Paradise Cinemas

Group

The company's shares in i-Pac Communications Limited are subject to put option that is now exercisable subject to a agreed valuation of the
company.

During the year, the company's subsidiary, PNG FM Limited invested a further PGK 3 million in Paradise Cinemas Limited to enable the entity
to settle its bank loan and release PNG FM Limited from its liability as guarantor of the loan.

Holding Company

231 Waimanu Rd Holdings Limited and PNG FM Limited are not listed on any stock exchange.
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2016 20162015 2015

$ $ $ $

$$

$$
Goodwill                   Software                      Total

$

COMMUNICATIONS (FIJI) LIMITED and Subsidiary company
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

13. INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATE OR JOINT VENTURE continued 2016 2015

(b) Investment of PNG FM Limited in Paradise Cinemas (PNG) Limited continued $ $

Total investment in associate or joint venture 2,036,629 1,970,953

14. FINANCIAL ASSETS
2016 2015 2016 2015

$ $ $ $

Shares in i-Pac Communications Limited 591,884 591,884 591,884 591,884

15. INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Holding company $ $
Software
Cost:
At 1 January 915,858 909,068
Additions 1,155 11,712
Disposal - (4,922)
At 31 December 917,013 915,858

Depreciation and impairment:
At 1 January 541,608 465,132
Disposal - (4,922)
Depreciation charge for the year 82,645 81,398
At 31 December 624,253 541,608

Net book value 292,760 374,250

Group  Goodwill  Software  Total

Cost: $ $ $
At 1 January 2016 1,507,569 979,576 2,487,145
Additions - 1,155 1,155
Disposal - -
Translation adjustment - (4,758) (4,758)
At 31 December 2016 1,507,569 975,973 2,483,542

Depreciation and impairment:
At 1 January 2016 370,569 555,777 926,346
Depreciation charge for the year - 88,843 88,843
Disposal - -
Translation adjustment - (1,414) (1,414)
At 31 December 2016 370,569 643,206 1,013,775

Net written down value:
At 31 December 2016 1,137,000 332,767 1,469,767

At 1 January 2016 1,137,000 423,799 1,560,799

In prior year, the holding company authorised PNG FM Limited to issue a qualified letter of support for the operations of Paradise Cinemas
(PNG) Ltd limited to the guarantee the subsidiary company issued to Westpac Bank, PNG. At 31 December 2015, the contingent liability
from the guarantee is estimated at K2.9m. During this financial year, PNG FM Limited invested a further PGK 3 million in Paradise Cinemas

Group

The company's shares in i-Pac Communications Limited are subject to put option that is now exercisable subject to a agreed valuation of the
company.

During the year, the company's subsidiary, PNG FM Limited invested a further PGK 3 million in Paradise Cinemas Limited to enable the entity
to settle its bank loan and release PNG FM Limited from its liability as guarantor of the loan.

Holding Company

231 Waimanu Rd Holdings Limited and PNG FM Limited are not listed on any stock exchange.
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Total investment in associate or joint venture 1,970,9532,036,629

292,760 374,250

1,137,000 1,469,767332,767
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COMMUNICATIONS (FIJI) LIMITED and Subsidiary company
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016
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COMMUNICATIONS (FIJI) LIMITED and Subsidiary company
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

15. INTANGIBLE ASSETS continued

(a) Impairment testing of goodwill and intangibles with indefinite useful lives

$ $

Carrying amount of goodwill 1,137,000 1,137,000

Key assumptions used in value in use calculations

The calculation of value in use are most sensitive to the following assumptions:
- Discount rates;

- Market share during budget period;
- Growth rates used to extrapolate cash flows beyond the budget period;

- Political stability; and
- Capital expenditure.

Discount rates

Market share during budget period

Growth rate estimates

Political stability

Capital expenditure

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Holding company  Total

Cost: $ $ $ $
At 1 January 2016 486,026 5,570,181 591,378 6,647,585
Additions - 768,516 137,164 905,680
Disposals - (126,068) (119,849) (245,917)
At 31 December 2016 486,026 6,212,629 608,693 7,307,348

Depreciation and impairment:
At 1 January 2016 301,969 2,935,122 357,713 3,594,804
Depreciation charge for the year 13,073 429,469 66,539 509,081
Disposals - (72,409) (91,541) (163,950)
At 31 December 2016 315,042 3,292,182 332,711 3,939,935

Net written down value:
At 31 December 2016 170,984 2,920,447 275,982 3,367,413

At 1 January 2016 184,057 2,635,059 233,665 3,052,781

 Land and
buildings

These assumptions are important, because, as well as using industry data for growth rates management assess how the unit's position,
relative to its competitors, might change over the budget period. Management expects the Group's share of the PNG market to be
stable over the budget period.

Rates are based on published industry research.

There are no significant capital expenditure adjusted in the budgeted period. The capital expenditure used in this calculation is
assumed to be equal to depreciation.

Management expect the political environment to be stable over the budget period.

Goodwill acquired through business combination with indefinite life has been allocated to the subsidiary acquired which is an individual
cash generating unit, which is also a reportable segment, for impairment testing as follows:

Discount rates reflect management's estimate of the risks specific to the unit. This is the benchmark used by management to assess
operating performance and to evaluate future investment proposals. In determining the appropriate discount rate, regard has been
given to the yield on a ten-year government bond at the beginning of the budgeted year.

 Motor  vehicles Plant and
equipment

The recoverable amount of the subsidiary has been determined based on a value in use calculation using cash flow projections from
financial budgets approved by senior management covering a five year period. The pre-tax discount rate applied to cash flow
projection is 19% (2015: 19%) and cash flows beyond the 5-year period are extrapolated using a 5% growth rate (2015: 5%) that is the
same as the long term average growth rate for the industry in PNG.

30

15. INTANGIBLE ASSETS continued

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT Land and
buildings

Plant and
equipment

Motor vehicles
Total

$ $ $ $

170,984 3,367,4132,920,447 275,982At 31 December 2016

$ $
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COMMUNICATIONS (FIJI) LIMITED and Subsidiary company
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016
COMMUNICATIONS (FIJI) LIMITED and Subsidiary company
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT continued
 Total

Group $ $ $ $
Cost:
At 1 January 2016 525,270 11,667,482 1,214,538 13,407,290
Additions - 905,745 240,336 1,146,081
Disposals - (126,068) (276,103) (402,171)
Translation adjustment (2,930) (455,532) (45,993) (504,455)
At 31 December 2016 522,340 11,991,627 1,132,778 13,646,745

Depreciation and impairment:
At 1 January 2016 307,918 6,263,888 734,258 7,306,064
Depreciation charge for the year 16,962 788,007 169,424 974,393
Disposals - (72,409) (214,776) (287,185)
Translation adjustment (667) (269,923) (33,297) (303,887)
At 31 December 2016 324,213 6,709,563 655,609 7,689,385

Net written down value:
At 31 December 2016 198,127 5,282,064 477,169 5,957,360

At 1 January 2016 217,352 5,403,594 480,280 6,101,226

17. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
2016 2015 2016 2015

$ $ $ $

Trade payables 166,001 183,818 98,209 100,476
Other payables 1,017,839 964,027 353,493 324,887

1,183,840 1,147,845 451,702 425,363

Terms and conditions of the above financial liabilities:

- Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are normally settled on 60-day terms.

- Other payables are non-interest bearing and have an average term of six months.

- Interest payable is normally settled monthly throughout the financial year.

- For terms and conditions relating to related parties, refer to Note 24.

18. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT LIABILITIES $ $ $ $

Annual leave 156,183 134,555 109,343 90,022
Long service leave 113,964 101,879 - -

270,147 236,434 109,343 90,022

Total non-cash addition during the year amounted to Nil (2015:Nil).

As at 31 December 2016, the gross carrying amount of fully depreciated property, plant and equipment that is still in use is $1,695,759
(2015: $1,351,061).

The carrying amount of plant and equipment held under finance leases and hire purchase contracts for the group at 31 December 2016 was
$223,882 (2015: $234,924). Leased assets and assets under hire purchase contracts are pledged as security for the related finance lease
and hire purchase liabilities.

 Land and
buildings

 Plant and
equipment

Holding CompanyGroup

 Motor  vehicles
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16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT continued

17. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

18. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT LIABILITIES

Land and
buildings

Plant and
equipment

Motor vehicles
Total

$ $ $ $

At 31 December 2016 5,957,360198,127 5,282,064 477,169

$ $ $ $

Holding CompanyGroup
2016 20162015 2015

$ $ $ $

30
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COMMUNICATIONS (FIJI) LIMITED and Subsidiary company
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016
COMMUNICATIONS (FIJI) LIMITED and Subsidiary company
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

19. INTEREST-BEARING BORROWINGS 2016 2015 2016 2015

Current Maturity $ $ $ $

Secured loan Note 26 4% 925,609 433,907 425,657 425,963
Lease liabilities Note 22 4% 47,606 50,367 47,606 50,367

973,215 484,274 473,263 476,330

Non-current
Secured loan Note 26 1,667,074 551,789 165,945 551,789
Lease liability Note 22 16,476 37,179 16,476 37,179

1,683,550 588,968 182,421 588,968

Details of interest bearing borrowings are:

(a) Bank overdraft and secured loan are secured as follows:

Holding company

PNG FM Limited

(b) Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities were secured by a Master Lease agreement and a charge over leased assets.

20. SHARE CAPITAL $ $ $ $

Authorised capital
5,000,000 ordinary shares of $1 each 5,000,000 5,000,000 5,000,000 5,000,000

Issued and paid up capital
3,558,000 ordinary shares of $1 each 3,558,000 3,558,000 3,558,000 3,558,000

21. RESERVES $ $ $ $

Foreign currency translation reserve
At 1 January (87,847) 192,185 - -
Currency translation differences (217,827) (280,032) - -
At 31 December (305,674) (87,847) - -

Share premium reserve

At 1 January 61,500 61,500 61,500 61,500
Issue of additional shares - at a premium - - - -
At 31 December 61,500 61,500 61,500 61,500

Total reserves (244,174) (26,347) 61,500 61,500

Nature and purpose of reserves

Foreign currency translation reserve

Share premium reserve

Effective interest rate %

Foreign currency translation reserve is used to record exchange differences arising from the translation of the financial statements of
foreign subsidiary. It is also used to record the effect of hedging net investment in foreign operation outside Fiji.

The share premium reserve arises from the issue of shares at a premium.

Holding Company

The loan from Westpac Banking Corporation is secured by a first registered mortgage debenture over the assets of the company and
undertakings including its uncalled ad called but unpaid capital. Interest on loan accounts are charged at the rate of 4.00%.

4%

PNG FM Limited's loan is secured by all PNG FM Limited assets and undertaking including its called and uncalled capital. Interest on
loan accounts are charged at the rate of 9.5%.

4%

Group
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19. INTEREST-BEARING BORROWINGS

20. SHARE CAPITAL

21. RESERVES

Holding CompanyGroup
2016 20162015 2015

$ $ $ $

$ $ $ $
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COMMUNICATIONS (FIJI) LIMITED and Subsidiary company
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016
COMMUNICATIONS (FIJI) LIMITED and Subsidiary company
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

22. EXPENDITURE COMMITMENTS 2016 2015 2016 2015
$ $ $ $

(a) Capital expenditure commitments - - - -

(b) Finance lease commitments

Future commitments in respect of finance lease are as follows:

Within one year 49,063 52,952 49,063 52,952

Total minimum lease payments 49,063 52,952 49,063 52,952
Deduct future finance charges (1,456) (2,585) (1,456) (2,585)

Present value of minimum lease payments 47,606 50,367 47,606 50,367

Analyzed as:
Current 47,606 50,367 47,606 50,367
Non-current 16,476 37,179 16,476 37,179

64,082 87,546 64,082 87,546

(c)  Operating lease commitments

Future commitments in respect of operating lease are as follows:

Within one year 153,465 152,997 153,465 152,997
After one year but not more than five years 610,920 589,232 610,920 589,232
More than five years 155,441 466,323 155,441 466,323

Minimum lease payments 919,826 1,208,552 919,826 1,208,552

23. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES $ $ $ $

Fiji Electricity Authority 8,660 8,660 8,660 8,660
Telecom Fiji Limited 8,567 8,567 8,567 8,567

17,227 17,227 17,227 17,227

24. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES $ $ $ $

(a) Directors

Directors at anytime during the year were as follows:

(b) Ownership interest in related parties

PNG FM Limited 100% 100%
Total Event Company Limited 100% 100%
231 Waimanu Holdings Limited 50% 50%
Paradise Cinemas (PNG) Limited 43.9% 43.9%

(c) The following related party transactions occurred during the financial year:

(i) Transactions with consolidated subsidiary - PNG FM Limited $ $

Costs incurred on behalf of the subsidiary and recovered 269,233 269,415
Management fees 36,000 36,000

(ii) Transactions with 231 Waimanu Rd Holdings Limited $ $

Rental of office and studio space 144,597 144,597
Dividends received 75,000 250,000

Related party transactions are at normal commercial terms and conditions.

Ownership interest

Matthew Wilson, William Parkinson, Pramesh Sharma, Sufinaaz Dean(appointed 21 March 2016), Vilash Chand (appointed 4 May 2016)
and Shaenaz Voss (Resigned (11 April 2016).

The group has lease agreements for office space. The annual lease rentals are recognized as an expense in the current year.

Holding CompanyGroup
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22. EXPENDITURE COMMITMENTS

23. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

24. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

$ $ $ $

Holding CompanyGroup
2016 20162015 2015

$ $ $ $

$ $ $ $

Ownership interest
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COMMUNICATIONS (FIJI) LIMITED and Subsidiary company
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016
COMMUNICATIONS (FIJI) LIMITED and Subsidiary company
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

24. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES continued 2016 2015 2016 2015
$ $ $ $

(d) Compensation of key management personnel

Short-term employee benefits 545,747 507,915 442,744 385,645
Superannuation contribution 54,575 40,633 44,274 30,852

600,322 548,548 487,019 416,497

(e) Owings to related entities $ $ $ $

Paradise Cinemas (PNG) Limited 85,628 92,538 - -
PNG FM Limited - - 799,449 505,746

85,628 92,538 799,449 505,746

(g) Directors' interests in an employee-share incentive plan

25. COMPANY DETAILS

(a) Company incorporation

(b) Registered office/Company operation

(c) Number of employees

As at balance date, the company employed a total of 160 employees (2015: 150 employees).

26. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

Interest rate risk

The following sensitivity analysis is based on the interest rate risk exposures in existence at the balance date:

-100bp                (13,437)
+100bp                  13,437

-100bp                  (8,548)
+100bp                    8,548

Foreign currency risk

The group's principal financial liabilities comprises bank overdrafts, finance leases, hire purchase contracts, trade payables and loans. The
main purpose of these financial liabilities is to raise finance for the group's operations. The group has various financial assets such as trade
receivables and cash , which arise directly from its operations.

No share options have been granted to staff, executives and the non-executive members of the Board of Directors under this scheme.

2016

Holding Company

The group has an investment in Papua New Guinea. The movement in the Kina/Fiji dollar exchange rates are recorded in equity and will be
realized on disposal of the investment.

Effect on profit
before tax         $

The group's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the group's long-term debt obligations with floating
interest rates. The group's policy is to manage its interest cost using a mix of fixed and variable rate debts.

The main risk arising from the company's financial statements are interest rate and credit risk. The Board of Directors reviews and agrees
policies for managing each of these risks which are summarized below.

The company's operations and registered office is located at 231 Waimanu Road, Suva while the subsidiary is in Papua New Guinea.
The associate company namely 231 Waimanu Rd Holdings Limited operate from 231 Waimanu Road, Suva.

The legal form of the company is a public company, domiciled and incorporated in the Republic of Fiji under the Companies Act, 1983.

Increase /
(decrease) in
interest rate

2015

The group has transactional currency exposures. Such exposures arises from purchases by the group in currencies other than Fijian dollars.

Group
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24. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES continued

25. COMPANY DETAILS

26. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

$ $ $ $

Holding CompanyGroup
2016 20162015 2015

$ $ $ $

Increase /
(decrease) in
interest rate

Effect on profit
before tax       $

Holding CompanyGroup
2016 20162015 2015

$ $ $ $
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COMMUNICATIONS (FIJI) LIMITED and Subsidiary company
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

26. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES continued

Credit risk

Liquidity risk

$ $ $ $
31 December 2016 Total On demand < 1 year 1 - 5 years > 5 years

Interest-bearing borrowings 2,656,765 - 973,215 1,683,550 -
Trade and other payables 1,183,840 166,001 1,017,839 - -

3,840,605 166,001 1,991,054 1,683,550 -

31 December 2015 Total On demand < 1 year 1 - 5 years > 5 years

Interest-bearing borrowings 1,073,242 - 484,274 588,968 -
Trade and other payables 1,147,845 183,818 964,027 - -

2,221,087 183,818 1,448,301 588,968 -

Capital management

2016 2015
$ $

Interest-bearing borrowings 2,656,765 1,073,242
Trade and other payables 1,183,840 1,147,845
Less: cash and short term deposits (1,405,902) (432,845)
Net debt 2,434,703 1,788,242

Equity 10,025,744 11,863,656

Total capital 10,025,744 11,863,656

Capital and net debt 12,460,447 13,651,898

Gearing ratio 20% 13%

27.

28. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

It is the group's policy that all customers who wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification procedures. In addition,
receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis with the result that the group's exposure to bad debts is not significant. There are no
significant concentrations of credit risk within the group.

No other matters or circumstances have arisen since the end of the financial year which significantly affected or may significantly affect the
operations of the company and the group, the results of those operations, or the state of affairs of the company and the group as reported in
these financial statements.

The table below summarizes the maturity profile of the Group's liabilities at 31 December based on contractual undiscounted payments:

Subsequent to year end, the Directors declared final dividends of 12 cents per share for the year ended 31 December 2016.

SIGNIFICANT EVENTS

TC Winston caused significant damage to the company's transmitters when it hit Fiji in February 2016. The impact of the cyclone cost the
company $232,551

The company's subsidiary, PNG FM Limited invested a further PGK 3 million in Paradise Cinemas Limited to enable the entity to settle its
bank loan and release PNG FM Limited from its liability as guarantor of the loan.

The primary objective of the group's capital management is to ensure that it maintains a strong credit rating and a healthy capital ratio in
order to support its business and maximize shareholder value.

The group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it, in light of changes in economic conditions. To maintain or adjust the
capital structure, the group may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. No
changes were made in the objectives, polices or processes during the year 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015.

The group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital plus debt. The group's policy is to keep the gearing
ratio below 40%. The group includes net debt, interest-bearing borrowings, trade and other payables less cash and cash equivalents,
excluding discounted operations. Capital includes any preference shares, equity attributable to equity holders of the parent less any
unrealized gains reserve.

Group
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COMMUNICATIONS (FIJI) LIMITED and Subsidiary company
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

26. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES continued

28. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

27. SIGNIFICANT EVENTS

$
 > 5 years31 December 2016 Total

$
On demand

$
< 1 year 

$
1 - 5 years

31 December 2015 Total On demand < 1 year 1 - 5 years  > 5 years

Group
2016                       2015

$                             $
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COMMUNICATIONS (FIJI) LTD
LISTING REQUIRMENTS OF SOUTH PACIFIC STOCK EXCHANGE 

(A)     Statement of interest of each Director in the share capital of the Company or in a related corporation as at 31 December 2016 in      
compliance with Listing Requirements :        

Sufinaaz Dean (Direct interest) 2,000 shares in Communications (Fiji) Limited.       
 
William Parkinson (Indirect interest - Parkinson Holdings Limited) 1,881,341 shares in Communications Fiji Limited.

(B)    Distribution of shareholding        

 Holding No. of holders % Holding  

 Less than 500 Shares 38 0.50%  

 501 to 5,000 Shares 83 4.19%  

 5,001 to 10,000 Shares 9 2.00%  

 10,001 to 20,000 Shares 3 1.33%  

 20,001 to 30,000 Shares 6 4.01%  

 30,001 to 40,000 Shares 2 1.94%  

 50,001 to 100,000 Shares 1 2.68%  

 100,001 to 1,000,000 Shares 4 30.47%  

 Over 1,000,000 Shares 1 52.88%  

  147 100%  
        
        
(C)    Share register, registered and principal administrative office and company secretary      
  
        

Central Share Registry Limited        
Level 2, Provident Plaza 1        
Suva        
Fiji        
        
The company is incorporated in Fiji with limited liability and is listed on the South Pacific Stock Exchange. The company secretary 
is Ms Jyoti Khatri, Group Financial Controller, Communications Fiji Limited.

35

Names                                                                                                                    No of Shares

Parkinson Holdings Ltd 1,881,341

Unit Trust of Fiji (Trustee Company) Ltd 388,627

BSP Life(Fiji) Ltd 275,855

Ian & Loretta Jackson 24,000

Jyoti Khatri 2,000

Adrian Au 2,000

Doris King 1,500

Charles Taylor 1,500

Philip Wilikibau 1,500

Pratika Kumar 1,100

Ateca Toganivalu 1,000

Vijay Narayan 1,000

Maikeli Radua  1,000

(D)    Schedule of each class of shares held by Directors and Senior Management under listing rule 6.31(iv) as at 31st December 2016
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COMMUNICATIONS (FIJI) LTD
LISTING REQUIRMENTS OF SOUTH PACIFIC STOCK EXCHANGE 

36

(E)         Shareholdings of those persons holding twenty largest blocks of shares under listing rule 6.31(iv)

 Shareholder Name    No. of Shares  Total % Holdings

1 Parkinson Holdings Ltd 1,881,341 52.88

2 Unit Trust of Fiji (Trustee Company) Ltd 388,627 10.92

3 BSP Investments (Fiji) Ltd 275,855 7.75

4 FHL Trustees Ltd ATF Fijian Holdings Uni Trust 252,403 7.09

5 JP Bayly Trust 167,333 4.70

6 Deborah Keola Yasmeen Dean 95,262 2.68

7 FijiCare Insurance Ltd 35,000 0.98

8 Amy Lynn Bergquist 34,000 0.96

9 Aequi-Libria Associates Ltd 26,700 0.75

10 Carlisle (Fiji) Limited 25,580 0.72

11 Erik Larson and Karla Larson –Wadd,JTwros 24,400 0.69

12 Ian & Loretta Jackson 24,000 0.67

13 Eta & Radike Qereqeretabua 21,200 0.60

14 Graham Eden 20,891 0.59

15 Reddy’s Enterprises Ltd 20,000 0.56

16 Nabukeru Village – Apanisa 14,795 0.42

17 Arthur John Reynolds & Julian Reynolds 12,400 0.35

18 Frazine Dutta 10,000 0.28

19 Jimaima T Schultz 10,000 0.28

20 Tony Singh 9,551 0.27

 PNG FM LTD (PNG) FJD PARADISE CINEMAS (PNG) FJD 231 WAIMANU RD (FIJI)
Percentage of Shareholding  100%  43.87% 50%
 $ $ $

Turnover 5,820,344 2,553,341 413,332

Other Income 27,221 901,847  

 5,847,565 3,455,188 413,332

Depreciation and amortization (471,510) (1,042,079) (4,461)

Interest Expense (56,200) (293,767) -

Other Expenses (5,213,900) (3,607,083) (57,143)

Impairment Loss on investment in joint venture (2,180,233)   

Income Tax (Expense)/Benefit (933,085) - (70,376)

 (8,854,928) (4,942,929) (131,980)

Net Profit/(loss) after Tax (3,007,363) (1,487,741) 281,352

Total Assets  5,021,289 6,823,258 4,451,329

Total Liabilities (3,611,106) (2,483,084) (666,545)

Shareholders Fund 1,410,183 4,340,174 3,784,784

(F)     Disclosure under listing rule 6.31 (viii)
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(G)     Disclosure under Listing Rule 6.31 (ix)
 There were no contracts existing which had director’s material interest in it.

(H)      Disclosure under listing Rule 6.31(xii)
 

Summary of key Financial Results for the previous five years (Consolidated)
 
 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 * Restated 2011* Restated

Net (Loss)/Profit After Tax (1,335,445) 1,455,513 1,474,957 1,515,009 2,219,621 642,379
Current Assets 4,141,605 3,302,224 3,767,229 3,519,750 4,254,733 2,916,787

Non- Current Assets 10,129,496 11,247,688 10,624,533 10,341,148 10,550,686 9,453,014

Total Assets 14,271,101 14,549,912 14,391,762 13,860,898 14,805,419 12,369,801
Current Liabilities 2,313,238 1,828,067 2,107,726 2,147,768 3,256,048 2,314,050

Non- Current Liabilities 1,932,119 858,189 1,168,901 1,488,138 1,581,966 2,652,045

Total Liabilities 4,245,357 2,686,256 3,276,627 3,635,906 4,838,014 4,966,095
Shareholders’ Equity 10,025,744 11,863,656 11,115,135 10,224,992 9,967,405 7,403,706
 

(I)      Disclosure under listing Rule 6.31(xiii)(a) (Consolidated)

 2016 Cents 2015 Cents 2014 Cents 2013 Cents 2012 cents 2011 cents
Dividend Declared per share  0.12 0.12 0.13 0.11 0.24 0.10
Earnings per share  (37.53) 40.91 41.45 42.58 62.38   24.64
Net tangible assets per share 2.40 2.90 2.66 2.41 2.34 1.67

(J)     Disclosure under listing Rule 6.31(xiii) (d)

Share price during the year (cents per share) 2016
Highest  4.35

Lowest 4.14

On 31st December 2016 4.35
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Minutes of the Thirty first Annual General Meeting of Shareholders held on the 27th of May 2016, at 231 Waimanu Road, at 10.00am.

Present:
Mr. Matthew Wilson Chairman
Mr. William Parkinson Managing Director
Mr Pramesh Sharma Director
Mr. Vilash Chand Director
Ms. Jyoti Khatri Company Secretary
Mr Ian Jackson 
Mrs Loretta Jackson
Ms Elenoa Kaloumaira
Mr. Peni Tora (E&Y)
Mr. Villiame Cakacaka (E&Y)
Ms. Krishika Narayan(SPSE)
Ms Latileta Qoro(SPSE)
Mrs. Doris Southwick
Mrs. Ateca Toganivalu
Mr. Vijay Narayan
Ms. Sufi Dean 
Mr Waqa Ledua
Mr Prem Chand
Mr Maganlal Mohanlal
Mr Maikeli Radua

Quorum:
The Quorum required was met and recorded.

Opening of AGM
The Chairman welcomed the shareholders and attendees. 

Text of Chair’s remarks: 
Greetings to you on behalf of the board of directors of Communications (Fiji) Limited. We are here for the 31st annual meeting of the 
company and will shortly begin the formal agenda. 

But let me now address you on some of the company’s affairs and numerous related matters.

You will be familiar with last year’s results. Announcements on the South Pacific Stock Exchange received fairly extensive media 
coverage and the 2015 annual report has been circulated. 

So let me start by fast-forwarding to 2016. 

We have been in business long enough to be wary about the vagaries of the market. That said, the CFL board can state that we believe 
we are on course in Fiji for what promises to be a record year. The economy is holding up well after the destruction caused by Cyclone 
Winston. All the experts are predicting there will be growth again this year. We can sense that ourselves from the positive attitude of 
advertisers and business people generally.

Radio advertising revenue for the first four months of the year, traditionally our weakest period, was at an all-time high and forward 
bookings look very positive.

The Total Event Company (TEC) subsidiary is making significant inroads into the expanding conference and events business. We expect 
this to gather pace as tourism numbers go up and private sector investment flows into new infrastructure and amenities. 

I mention as examples of this important area of growth the construction by TEC of the exhibitor booths for the inaugural Tourism Fiji 
Wedding Expo and 109 booths for this year’s Fijian Tourism Expo.

Our own Fiji Showcase has evolved over more than 25 years from a small “home and leisure” exhibition at the Suva Civic Centre to the 
largest trade and entertainment show in the South Pacific staged annually at the Vodafone Arena. This year’s Showcase is shaping up 
to be the biggest ever, featuring 152 booths.

I wish to offer here an accolade to CFL’s Fiji engineering team. As the nation reeled from the frightening force of Winston and other 
extreme weather earlier in the year, our engineers showed why they are the best. They kept us on air in the central division, and 
ensured our networks elsewhere resumed transmission well ahead of the competition. This has given a boost to listenership and our 
bottom line. 
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Last year the CFL engineers completed a major $500,000 project to upgrade our transmission infrastructure and radio signal in many 
parts of the country. The project covered the Suva-Nausori corridor most densely populated area of the country. It took in Naitasiri, 
Rewa, Namosi and central Viti Levu; the Queens highway towards Sigatoka; population centres through Korovou towards Rakiraki, 
Kadavu, the Lau Group, Lomaiviti, Taveuni and numerous locations on Vanua Levu.

All this was good for listeners and advertisers and the government ministries and agencies that are required to communicate public 
and community information.

So now let us pay tribute to the engineers who help to keep CFL at the front of the radio broadcast market.

Back on the 2015 results, we can be pleased with what we achieved, despite some obstacles and setbacks.

The healthy state of the group balance sheet, which you have in the annual report, is illustrated by total assets of $14,549,912 against 
liabilities of $2,686,256. This created net assets of $11,863,656. Our gearing ratio stood at 13 percent, a substantial improvement on 
2014.

In Fiji, the prime driver of the outcome, the year started slowly. The company got a dose of Bollywood reality when we brought in the 
controversial actress Sunny Leone and her retinue for two concerts. Unfortunately her star power and much publicity did not translate 
into the level of ticket sales required. The substantial loss was an unwelcome challenge. 

But we overcame this, and recovered lost ground by keeping a very hard focus on achieving acceptable earnings. In the second half of 
the year sales surged and we crossed the line strongly, turning in a profit after tax of $1,725,197. 

All things considered, it was quite an effort. 

The result included earnings from 231 Waimanu Road Ltd, owner of this building.  A long overdue valuation of the property, combined 
with leasing of temporarily vacant space on the top floor, produced an after tax share of profit of $768,965. 

PNG FM did not have an easy time. PNG’s economy went through a considerable slow down related to falling commodity prices. This 
had a substantial impact in the commercial sector. 

We cut costs but also faced an unavoidable rise in rental for our office accommodation. 

Another factor affecting the result was the declining value of the PNG currency, the Kina.

As a consequence of these issues, operating profit dropped to FJD 973,656.

PNG’s slump rolled over into 2016. It is attracting quite a lot of negative headlines and coverage. But we remain optimistic about the 
country’s future based on the riches of its natural resources, its population numbers and strategic location. 

In 2016 we are concentrating again on further fine-tuning PNG FM’s management systems and developing the sales team. CFL’s 
director of sales, Doris Southwick, is making visits to Port Moresby to assist with training and motivation. We are confident her efforts 
will produce results.

Paradise Cinemas Ltd (PCL) our joint venture with City Pharmacy Ltd, and Damodar Group Fiji Ltd, continued to register substantial 
losses. These are included in the 2015 annual report.  Our shareholding of 43.87 per cent is held through PNG FM.

In a South Pacific Stock Exchange announcement in March, your board confirmed that we have decided to fully impair the PNG FM 
investment in PCL. We had flagged this possibility in the 2014 report. This means all obligations to PCL have been fully provided for 
as reflected in the consolidated results.

Shareholders should note that while the PCL investment is impaired, PNG FM remains exposed to its bank guarantee obligation. 
However as PNG FM is operating without any bank debt, it is more than capable of meeting this.

I finish on a personal note. You will see that I am offering myself for re-election.
If you intend to place your confidence in me again, I should tell you that I will be stepping down at the end of the year. I have told my 
board colleagues about this.

The reasons are tied directly to my personal plans. I was a founder of CFL with William and have served as a director from day one – 
that’s more than 30 years. I have been privileged to be chair for the last five years.

CFL is a strong pillar of my 40-year business career. It is a very real part of my life.

But now, as I approach my mid-70s, I have decided it is time to concentrate on completing some long-delayed projects.
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So in a sense I am saying farewell. 

Thank you all - shareholders, directors and employees - and ni sa moce.

Confirmation of Minutes: 
The Minutes of the thirtieth Annual General Meeting held on the 12th of May 2015 were read and approved.

The motion to adopt the minutes was proposed by Pramesh Sharma and seconded by Ms Elenoa Kaloumaira and approved unanimously.

Matters arising from the Minutes:
No Matters Arising 

Audited Accounts:
The Chairman went through Audited Financials page by page and highlighted on major information and disclosures. 

Auditors were present to answer any technical questions; however no major issues were raised. 

The Audited Balance Sheet, Profit and loss and Directors reports were received and adopted. The motion was moved by Mr Maganlal 
Mohanlal and seconded by Ms Sufinaaz Dean. 

Election of Director:
Mr Matt Wilson was due for re-appointment by rotation under article 108 of Article of Association of the company. Before vacating his 
chair for re- election he indicated that he will be retiring by end of 2016. 

Mr William Parkinson nominated Mr Wilson for the re-appointment. It was seconded by Mr Pramesh Sharma and was accepted 
unanimously.

Appointment of Directors: 
Ms Sufinaaz Dean’s appointment to the board was ratified. Pramesh Sharma moved the motion and it was seconded by Ms Elenoa.

Mr Vilash Chand’s appointment was also ratified. He represents Unit Trust of Fiji. He replaces Ms Shaenaaz Voss. The motion was 
moved by William Parkinson and seconded by Mr Maganlal Mohanlal. 

Appointment of Auditors:
The meeting resolved to re appoint M/s Ernst & Young as auditors.

The motion was proposed by Mr Pramesh Sharma, seconded by Ms. Doris Southwick.

Dividends:
The meeting noted that a 2nd Interim Dividend of $284,640 (8cents per share) has been adopted as the final Dividend for the year 
2015.

A motion to endorse this was proposed by Mr. Maganlal Mohanlal, seconded by Mr. Vijay Narayan and adopted unanimously.

Other Matters:
Director’s remuneration was discussed. 

William Parkinson proposed a budget of $60,000 to be allocated towards directors Fees and Insurance cover. He also clarified that the 
remuneration will be fixed based on PWC assessment. 

The motion was proposed by Mr Maganlal and seconded by Vijay Narayan.

There being no other business the Chairman closed the meeting at 10.45 am.

Approved

……………………….
Chairman 

MINUTES OF THE 31ST ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
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CFL 2016 FINAL EVENT

Fiji’s Biggest Night Out – The Annual Fiji Street Party
at the Suva Foreshore
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COMMUNICATIONS FIJI LTD
Private Mail Bag, Suva, Fiji.  Phone: 3 314 766     Fax: 3 303 748

e-mail: jyoti@cfl.com.fj
 

APPOINTMENT OF PROXY
THE COMPANY SECRETARY,

I/We__________________________________________of ___________________________________________________________

being a member of Communications Fiji Limited, hereby appoint,

_____________________________________________of ____________________________________________________________

or failing him/her ______________________________of _____________________________________________________________
as my/our proxy, to vote for me/us and on my/our behalf at the Annual General Meeting of Communications Fiji Limited to be held 
on 27th of May, 2016 and at any adjournment thereof

Signed this ____________________________________________day of _____________________________________________2016

Signature of Member:  ________________________________________________________________________________________

Name of Member: ____________________________________________________________________________________________

Signature of Witness: __________________________________________________________________________________________

In case of a body corporate, this form should be under its Seal or be signed by an Officer or an Attorney duly authorized by it.

This form is to be used in favour of/against* the resolution.
      *Strike out which ever is not applicable.  Unless otherwise instructed, the proxy may vote as   
he/she thinks fit.
This proxy form, to be effective, must reach the registered office of the Company, 231 Waimanu Road, Suva, no less than 48 hours 
before the time of holding the meeting.

Voting on Business at the General Meeting

Please note: If you mark the abstain box for a particular Resolution, you are directing your proxy not to vote on that Resolution on a 
show of hands or on a poll and your votes will not to be counted in computing the required majority on a poll. A member may direct 
a proxy how to vote by marking one of the boxes opposite each item of business. Where a box is not marked the proxy may vote as 
they choose. Where more than one box is marked on an item the vote will be invalid on that item.

 Resolution For Against Abstain
To adopt the Minutes of the previous 31st Annual General Meeting held on 
27th May 2016 as correct record of the Meeting.

To adopt the Audited Financial Position and Comprehensive Income Statement and
 the reports of the Directors and Auditors, for the year ended 31st December 2016. 

Re-election of Pramesh Sharma

Appointment of Independent Director Ms Thelma Savua

Appointment of auditors of the company for 2017 and that the Board be authorized 
to fix their remuneration.

Adoption of 1st dividend of 12 cents per share as final dividend. 

Any other business in conformity with Articles of Association   
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CFL: FM96, Legend FM, Navtarang, Radio Sargam, Viti FM, Total Event Company, 
 fijivillage.com & CFL CinemADs

 PNG FM: Nau FM, YUMI FM & Legend FM 
Paradise Cinemas LTD
 231 Waimanu Rd LTD 

 Unwired Fiji


